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‘OUR CONFIDENCE IN
DELIVERING FURTHER
GROWTH REMAINS
UNCHANGED, SUPPORTED
BY THE CHRONIC NEED
FOR HOMES IN LONDON.’

Jon Di-Stefano
Chief Exacutive



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

REVENUE

£291.9m

2015. £245.8m

GROSS MARGIN'

22.3%

2016: 268.5%

OPERATING MARGIN’

13.42%

2076: 15.0%

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£34.1m

2016 £32.2m

36.8p

20186: 39.3p

GEARING

7.0%

2018: 9.3%

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

15.7p

2016: 14.20

DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

£1.5bn

2016: £1.6bn

FORWARD SALES

£546m

2016; £579m
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AT A GLANCE

AN OVERVIEW OF TELFORD HOMES

What we do

Telford Homas Plc is an AlM listed developer
of residential-led, mixed use sites in London,
where the need for homes far exceeds supply.

Qur custorrers neude individual irvestors
from the UK ang overseas, owner-occupiers
and housing associations. Increasingly we are
working with institutional investors in the build
to rent sector, a growing market in London.

Tounded in 2000, we now diractly employ
248 people and have a development pipeline
of gver 4000 homes.

We are a respgected partner to landowners,
housing associations, iocal authonties, build to
rent investors and our supply chair.

We are investing in the communities we create
via our new sustanability strategy and we

ook after our people, who are the real heart

of our business.

INVESTMENT CASE

PROVEN
STRATEGY

Focus on non-prime
focations across London and
forward selling to de-risk.

MARKET
OPPORTUNITY

Chronic shortage of homes
in London and increasing
build to rent investor

STRONG
PARTNERSHIPS

A respected partner to our
stakeholders, encouraging
new opportunities to work

demand. togather.
-1 Sead more anout auy  Read mare about s Read mare about our
our strateqy our market business model

HACKNEY
SQUARE
E9

Housing Design
Award winner 2016

DEVELOPMENT
PIPELINE

£1.5bn

NET ASSETS

£204m

KNOWLEDGE
& EXPERIENCE

A maotivated team with
axtansive experience of
planning and complex
construction in London.

2.3 Read about our
Board of directors



Where we operate

The business has traditionally focused

on Eas:London, but tne need for new
norries 18 ¢ great that we have recently
exparaed our horizons across a wider area,
Telford Homes is skilied in 3l aspects of

Londor develcpment and we can apply our
knowledge and expertise t¢ a wider rangs
of opportunities in new koroughs.

SUBSTANTIAL
PIPELINE

Davelopment pipefine

of over 4,000 homes
represanting £1.5 bitlion of
future revenue.

Read more in the

Cref Executive's reviaw

DE-RISKED
SALES

Forward sales secured of
E546 miflion giving visibitity
over future cash flows

and profits.

Head more in the
Financial review

We Jevelop ir non-prime facations to
maintan an affordabie price point for our
indredual customers and gur strategic move
into outld to rent provides scope to work
with investment partners across Londor,

QUALITY
& SERVICE

Delivering quality homes

to a diverse custamer mix
with a 99% recommendation
rate in 2016.

Read more ir the

Chief fxecutive's rév ew

03

GROWING
BUSINESS

Oriving significant pre-tax
arofit growth and paying
an increasing dividend to
sharehoiders.

s Read moren the
Chairman's siatement
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® Completed residential development of 101
apartments in Dalstar

¥ Ingorporating a new twe-form entry primary schaool

= Shortlisted for Housing Design Award 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

DEVELOPING IN LONDON:
A STRONG PERFORMANCE

'We are well positioned to continue the growth of Telford
Homes thanks to the strength of our performance in the
undersupplied non-prime London housing market and
our increasing activity in the build to rent sector.'

Performance

MNotwithsianding some uncertainty created oy

the outcome of the EU referendum, we have
exparienced robust demand for our homes from
indwidual investors and owner-occupiers. Our ability
to deliver forward sold hemes ‘o our customers

on programme, together with a step charge in our
presence in the build to rent sector, saw Telford
Homes achieving excelient results for the year to
31 March 2017, ) am particularly pleased that we
achieved a 99 per cent customer recommendation
rais it 2016 a notable endorserrent of our
commutment o quality and service.

Since February 2016 we have exchangea contracts
on four significant build to rent transaclions with

a range of investars, indicative of our growing
reputatior in the sector as a wusted delivery parmer.
Along with monitoring external wiluences on the
Group, the development of our builg to rent strategy
nas been one of the principal areas of focus for

the Board this year. This sector complements our
historic focus or indwvidial sales o invastors and
awner-sccupiers and § well aligned with our forward
selling philosophy.  The attractive return on capital
ana lower risk profie assocated with build to rent

will facilitate acceleratad growth for Telferd Homes,
altnough the Board remains mingdful of ensuring
the business grows in a centrolled manner it order
that our high standards of operatcnal perfarmance
arg upheld.

Dividend

The Board is pleased to declare a final dividend

of 8.5 pence per share, making a total of 16.7
pence per share for the year, an increase of just
over 10 per cent compared with tne previous

year (2016 14,2 pencel. Qur policy is ta pay are
thurd of garmings as divigands in each finanaial
year. For the year to 31 March 2017 nowever,

the Board has fulfiled s promise to increase the
dividend paymert abeve that level in order tc offset
the dilution in earnings resuiting from the aquity
clacing n late 2015, Therefore, the interim divioend
iogether with the full year dividend equates to

over 40 per cent of earnings for this financial year.
The final dividend will be paid on 14 July 2017 to
those sharenoiders on the register at the close of
husiness on 16 June 2017, The ex-dwidend date 1s
rnerefare 15 June 2017,

Culture and values

I nave atways bean proud of the single team Cuiture
and strong values of Telford Homas. In the las! yaar
we hava recruted talented pecpls fram autside

of the business at levels not seen prevously. As
Tetford ~omes cortnues o grow and our strateqgy
evolves, there 1s a need to ensure that the culture
that nas made the business 30 successful to date s
preserved, yet aole to adaot to the requirements of a
{arger orgamisavonm. Sor this reason, the Groun plans
10 review TR Corporale yision, Mision ard values
during 2017 to ensure these raflect the evolwng
sosivon of tha busiress ard allow L5 "o cagtalise
ar the ooparturlics that lie ahaas.

Andrew Wiseman
Chairman



'l am delighted to be able to look back on another
excellent year, and, on behalf of the Board, | wish
to thank all of our employees for their hard work

in delivering these results.'

Ir a year that has seen strong operational growtr, our
admirable neaith and safety "ecord merits mention.
Heaalth and safety 15 the first tem on the agenada at
monthly 3oard meetngs and our performance is
westament to the sound polcies and procedures

in place. as wel as the deeo-rooted sense of
resporsibility that pervades the orgarisaton.

Arather core principle in our approach is tne
emphasis placed upon sustainability, Although

this has been a consideration In the Group’s way of
agarating for some years, following the apsomntment
in 2018 of a Head of Sustarability, the philcsophy
has ceer: formaiisaa into our ‘Building a Living
Legacy' strategy. A number of Core targets have
been established within this strategy and we are
committed o acriewng these i the coming years.

Outlook

i am delightad tc be able to look back on another
excellent year, ard, on beraif of tne Beard, | wish

to thank alt our employess for their nard work in
delivering ‘nese resuits. | am excited by the strength
of our development pipaiire and the promising
oppartunities that lie ahead for Teiford Homes 10
play an increasing role n mesting the need for rew
homes in Lendon,

Andrew Wiseman
Chairman
30 May 2017

Q7
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MARKET OVERVIEW

DEVELOPING IN LONDON:
FAVOURABLE FUNDAMENTALS

The principal driver of the London housing market remains the
chronic imbalance between supply and demand and this is
particularly the case at Telford Homes’ typical price point.
Housing starts reduced in 2016, further exacerbating the situation.

Economic outlook

Londor's economric growth has oulpaced that
of the rest of the UK for tng last ten years, with
e exception of 2009 o 2070 [see chart 1,
and it is projected that London will remair the
fastest growing ragion. although 1ts pace of
expansion could reduce ror drounc 2.5 per
cent in 2075 %o an average of LSt under 2 per
ce~t e 201718,

The economic envireriment is proving 1o ce
robust and tne econamy nas performec vettar
than expected post the cU referendur vote,
with the housing market -emaining raesidien;.

Demand and papulation
growth in London

There has been consistert, long term growth
n London's nopulation {see chart 7). Thig nas
led 1o ever growng demand for housing «n me
camtal which nas not bee~ matched oy the
number of hones oullt.

Ower the cast few years there has been a
recovedy (i tne housing market driven by wider
SCCNG™IC recovery, iNCreasec access 10 low
cost morigage financing, improved availability
af fand thraugh the plarning pracess and
Governmert support “or the housing sector.
These remain ay dnvers for ihe market over
the longer *arm witr the outlook strong n the
near term.

The immediata impact of the £ referendurn in
June 2076 was relatively snort-lived, with the
widespread costhve atttude adopted within
tna UK maintaining consumer and DUsINgss
corfidence, However. the meaum ferm
¥npact of the referenaum as exit terms are
negotiatad |5 yert o be seen

‘With prices high in
central boroughs,
the search for value
and far higher price
growth prospects in
recent years has led
to a surge in dernand
irt Outer London
locations. These
characteristics are
being sought by both
owner-occupiers
and investars and we
expect this trend to
escalate over the next
five years.’

JLE JK Residantiar
Forecasts Novemper 2016



Housing starts reduce

There wers Zirca 17,600 new huiid starts in
Lengon for the year o Jung 2016, down from
around 25 Q00 ir 2015 see chan 3}, This was
the [owest level since 2012 and intensifles the
cumulatve deficit bult uc cver decades.

Tax changes

The move 1o a tiered system of Stamp Duty
tand Tax (SDLTY in recent years has assisted
the majority of the Group's ¢Jstormers because
Telford tiomes' typical price pont s lowear than
tne £8925,000 threshold wnaere higher ratas are
now payable, However, legislation introduced
an 1 Aoril 2216 1increased by three per cent
the SOL" payable by purchasers of buy-to-let
or second homes. Ths has led o many UK-
based investors becoming more ¢ rcumspect
about new purchases, although overseas
buyers have been less deterred, with the fall m
the value of sterling since the EU referendum
undoubledly a factor. Build to rent investors
factor SDUT into their acquisition madel prior
to any offer to purchase being made.

Changes have also been introduced to
mortgage nterest tax relief for investors, Prior
t0 Apnt 2017, landlords could deduct mortgage
interast and cther finance-related costs from
their rental incoma before Galculating their tax
Fakility. This reliet will be removed gradually
hetween 2017 and 2020, although a 'tax
aredit' worth 20 per cent of the mortgage
interest cost will remain allowaole.

Increasing rental demand

Atfordability of housing in Landon is
challenging. In 2018, seven of the ter least
affordabile local authority ‘ocations in the UK
ware in London. Unsurprisngiy therefore

the number of households ranting hemes

in London has ncreased oy 450,000 in

the last 10 yea-s. The increase in average
private rents m London relative to the rast of
England is indicative of the demanc for rented
acsommodation in the capital (see chart 4).

Government support

The Housing White Paper published in
February 2017 seeks to address some of the
issues that Bave inkibitec howsing supily.
Proposals including acceleraarg tne planning
process, makng available mere devalopment
iand and supporting SME builders in order to
puild sector capacity are encouraging.

The planning regime has hestoricatlly oeen a
kay constrant on the housebuilding industy's
abllity to provide the number of naw nomes
needed {¢ keep pace with demand. Appravat
rates have improved over the last few years
since the introduction of the National Planning
Palicy Framework, although the process to
aotain planmng permissicn and aischarge
sonditions can remain arduous, with the
shortage of local autharity planning officers

a key factor.

The Goverrmert's Helo to Buy scheme now
provides an equity loar of up to 40 per cert

in Lendon and this has further increased the
number of pelerial customers who can benefit
at price points up to £600.000. Whilst the
scherme remains availaoie it will assist many
people to own their own home in London who
otharwise couid not raise enough finance.

Outlook

Despite macroscancmic uncertainty,
particularly in reiation to the outcome cf

the EU referandum, market fundamentals
remair favourable. The attraction of London,
as evidenced by its growing population

and shortage of nousing supcly poiNts {c a
continuing need for new homes, particuiarly
in trelocatons and at ine price points that
Telford Homes develops.

Q9
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BUSINESS MODEL

DEVELOPING IN LONDON:
AN INTEGRATED BUSINESS

Our clear and simple business model has consistently delivered
value to our stakeholders.

Our key resources What we do
and relationships

LAND ACQUISITION

RESOURCES

[ESTES |
PLANNING :.. .

o zatange Ther

RELATIONSHIPS

Lara

DESIGN




How we create value

Sharing value with our stakeholders

Buying the right land in the

right locations Qur clients and communities

A focus on quality and servce logether with aur
sustainabifity commitments througn our ‘Buiding a
Living Legacy' stratogy.

Taking planning risk and
optimising a polcy compliant
s¢heme s

Aeudd more about our sustainaility strategy
Taking control of the whole

11

development process Our people
Securing forwird sales to ngardmg and stimulating career paths .
reduce risk with responaibiiity, empowerment and ocoporturites
eouce ns for training and deveiopment,

Driving capital returns through B34

Head more abeut our people
build to rent

Delivering excellent customer Shareholders

service We have grown pre-tax prott tenfold since 2012,

paying at least one third of earnings as dividends
sach year.
FORWARD SOLD POSITION

£54 6 m P22 Bead mare in the financial review

EARNINGS PER SHARE DIVIDEND PER SHARE
CUSTOMER RECOMMENDATION RATE

999, 36.8p 15.7p
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AMBITION AND STRATEGY

DEVELOPING IN LONDON:
DRIVING OUR GROWTH PLANS

We have a clear plan to achieve our ambition of doubling our
output of homes, underpinned by a philosophy of operating
responsibly and efficiently.

Our ambition

There is a chronic shortage of new homes in London. Our goal is to grow Telford
Homes over the next five years to help address this shortage. This will involve
doubling our output of homes in one of the world’s greatest cities.

Our strategy

increasing our average
sile size to achieve
economies of scale

Broadening our Focusing on
geographic focus affordable non-prime
within London lccations

to access more for open market
opporiunities sale hotnes

In the last few years we have been We are irrproving cur aceess 1o We continue to manage the

able to acnieve ennanced rawms land opportunities and increasing development pipeiine 1o ensure our

by decloving our resources on tha potartial for new reiationshins average orice point remains affordabie
larger development sites, We have by enlarging our target area of o potential awner-occupiers, tvastors
ncreased our minimum site size operation within Londer. We bave and their tenants. The average price of
threshald 1o focusg awr jand the knowledge and experuse (o the apen market nomes in aur current
buying accerdingly. successiully cevelop 1 new Gorougns. pipeling :s £527,0C0.

OPERATE EFFICIENTLY ACCESS TO LAND MEETING DEMAND
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Pasitioning Telford
Homes as a key build
to rent developer and

Maintaining a strong
forward sold position
to limit risk

Driving the evolution
of our sustamability
strategy

partner across London

Selling homes to tuild to rent We have always de-risked significant We have aeveloped our sustainabiity
ivasiors has been a signitcant agevelopments by securng forwarg strategy ‘Building a Living

change in ouw strategy sincea the sales early In tha development Legacy’ and recruted a Head of
start of 2016. Buld to rent delivers

arocess. This strategy has Susiainability to drive implemenitation
ennanced capital returns and can postiored the pusiness well In across the business. The core
accelerate our growth whilst also asonoMic downturns and Increased priorities and targets are described
reducing gur reiiance on dabt, our access o finance, on page 38.

ACCELERATING GROWTH REDUCING RISK OPERATE RESPONSIBLY
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

DEVELOPING IN LONDON:
A POSITIVE OUTLOOK

'In addition to strong financial results for the year to
31 March 2017, our growing reputation as a build to rent
partner is unlocking an exciting source of future growth.'

Performance

| arm delighted to report recos3 lavels of revenue and
praiit for the year tc 31 March 2617, Pre-tax profits
centinued tQ incraase, reaching £34.1 mition (2016:
£32.2 millier), sligntly ahsad of the tevel anticipated at
the beginning of the year due to mere open market
cempletiors in the second half of the year ard
acditional buld to rent prefit recogrition. The gross
margin before rterest charges of 22,3 per cent and the
onerating margin nefare interest of 13.4 per cent were
in line with expectations. Both reflact the increasing
mix between davelopments sold to individual buyars
and puild to rent trangactions secured at lower rrarging
in exchange fcr enranced capital returns.

Despite urcertanty in relation o the outcome of the
EU referendum anc tax cnanges impacting prmasily
U based individual investors, aur underlying markeat
has rermained rasifient. Any potental dampening effect
aof these factors has beer outweighed by the stractural
imiatance between supply and nece for new homes
n Loncon, particutarly at our typical price paint.

Our forward selling strategy continues to ke at

the neart of our model. We sell homes gariy n the
deveicpment cycle as a means of de-nisking projects
and advancing investment into new oppartunities.
I'mis means that trading activity undertaken in each
firarcial year will tynicaily deliver reverue and profit
aver the following twa to three years, giving the
Board substantial visdikty gver futare profit tavals
and expecied cash flows, We receive deposits whan
contracts are exchanged for individual proper..es
and, as at 31 March 20°7, £68.1 millian of deposts
had baen taken in advance of future completions.
This additional funding supports further investment
in the development gipeling and reduces the need (o
graw down cebt finance. We start tne financial year
with a substantial order pock of forward sales of
£346 rullion (1 Apri 2016, £579 million). This secure
and de-risked positon 15 underpinning our stated
expectations for growth over the next few years.

Following some recent land acquisitions, our
development pipeline stangs at £7.5 billion of future
revenue and represents mera than five times the
revenie generated in the year to 31 March 2077, The
average anticipated pnce cf the open rmar<et homes
within the pipefing is 527,000 (2C16: £513.00C).
This s 1n ing with our model Of seeking non-prime
oppoeriunities whare the average sales grice 's beiow
£1,000 per sguare foot, and nencs the majority of
homes are ancad between £350,000 and £700,000.

Jon Di-Stefano
Chief Executive
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In February 2017, we added to the pipaling with

the acquisition of a sizeable development Site, the
tormer London Electricity Board {LES) building on
Camiridga Heath Road, E2 for £30.2 million. The
anticipatad gross developmant vaiue of the site 1s
approsimalaty £95.0 rillion. Subject 10 planning
cansent, wa expact to start work on site in 2018 and
to firsh 1 2021. Post year end we have exchanged
contracts to acquire Stone Studios in —acknay
Wick tor 120 homes plus commarcial space, and
have oeen selectad as tna preferrad partner of the
London Borough of Srent o develop 236 homes n
South Kiburn. Sath sites have fulf planning cansent
and e axpect 1o start on sue later this year.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Customer mix

The Group’s custamar mix for the year to 31 Mar¢h
2017 nas moved significantly towards inshtutional
buitd to rent mvestors, wilh: this sector representing
77 per cent of sales generated (2018 24 per cent)
compared with mdmdual investors fram the UK and
oversaas at 20 per cent {2076: 69 per cent) and
owner-oCccugiers at thrae par cent (2016. seven Car
canth. In 1otal, includirg build to rent transagtions.,
we exchanged contracts tor the sale of 501 gpan
markel properties in he year 10 3 March 2017
2016 4535



Individual open market sales

Ag our bhudd 10 rent susiness nas grown, and we
have continued 10 pursue ou- forward sales strategy,
we have naturally seen lower numrbers of zales to
owner-Occupiers. Uniess they are cash buyers,
owner-occupiers ara typically unable to purchase
more than six manths ansad of completion,
Haowever, there is clearly significant demand from
this part of the market and over the last few weeks
wea have had a very encouraging esponse 1o the
launch of the resiqual availability at Bermondsey
Works leading te 22 cwner-occupier reservations,
20 of which ara being purchased under the
Goveramant's Help to Buy schame.

We have seen robust demand from ndividual
investo s undervinned by a thriving rental market
primarily caused by an imbpalance between supply
and aemand for rertal progerties at the righ: orice
point, Amangst thase sales itis pleasing to see
anumber Cf repeat purchasears, who often opt

ta wait for the launch of the next Telford Homes
developrient rather trhan investing elsewhere, 'n

tre 2078 calendar yea. we acheved a 39 per cent
customer recemMmendanon rate, an outstarding
performance that sustains the high levais acnieved
IN oray QUs years (20°'5; 9 oer cert).

Cutast sgrttant laungh e poideal rvestors was
e seco~d Bhasn of Oy Nortm Tinstury Park, n
TovermDer F07E, wrieh sacurec 73 ew 5ales - a
soambnes value of guer 4.3 milkor, Tra s.uooess of
thiz g evdaros thar Figr quality Fomes in Jesirab 2
lozaunrs -aman 30.Lg0t aftar by nyestes ann s e
word SubsecuRnl Dty Nerte Saun ooreReTs rar

STV H

2] - oue e

Noengrs adely auncte s for seie ruane

IMSIRAT 5ATT 3 b ol cear o

R T 3.3 N0 nste g r

Build to rent

We nave ncreased oLy oresance in tne Lanaon bleld
to rent sector over the last year. Since February 2016
we have entered into four budd to rent transactions
comprising of nearly 500 homes, togetrer warth
over £230 million. TeHorc Homes s a valued

partner ta large-scale investors, given our /ecard in
deliverng complex residentiai projects, and we are
oroud to have become recognisad as a significant
build to rent developer in sucn a short space cf tme,

ir December 2018, we exchangad caontracts for the
sale of The Forge, Redclyfte Road, E6 10 MAG Real
Estate. The sale censisied of the freencid nterest

in the lard and constructon of 125 hemes for a

ret consideraton of £48.6 million, Trus was ou”
shird Dl to rent transaction, and the seccnd with
M&G. At the erd of March 2017 our joIrt venture,
Chooharr Farm North LR, exchanged contracis
on our fourt signdficant ouild o rent transacton,
Contracts were axchanged for tre sale of 112 of the
297 open markat homes at New 3arder Quarter,
Stratford E15, for a et consiaeration of £53 7
milicn. The sale, o a suosididry of gur joint venture
partner Notting Hifl Housing Group, was for the first
phase of opsn narket nomes at thig deve aomert
and removed the need tor third party debt fnance.

A3 a2 nave previousiy renorted se are anival,
loox< ng Intg sstathishung 'ongar tenv relaliorsrips
WD QUG 1o re T mesTors, Wa antiaipaie 'rat hig
toe ot naotrsrsig wil enabie Taford noreos

Dot A SRCLTEC LG D TerT SLIG ey
£ oniace suoect P any c.arning riaurerants. Tnig

BV S ke T Tol: Bl 1 oF: [5s T L T STboLlL s UK Boli (IS

are, ee Woauor of _onor.,
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Market context

The principal market developments in the year have
‘becn a level of nervousness created by the cutcame
of the EL referendum and tax changes. namety the
thrae per cert stamp duty surcharge on second
progertes and the pnased removal of tax reliefl on
morigage interest. The patentially negatve impact of
tnese factors on our performance has been mitigated
by the cnronic imbatance between the supply of
and neec for homes i1 wondon. Gur business model
of devaloowyg hores that pecole carn afford 10
aither buy or rent g buit upon s furdanental and
longstanding driver of demand.

Although the EU referendum result created a degree
of uncertainty, tis nas nat to date neen a significant
cause far concern for the Sroup. We chose o defer
launches for & short penad while the immediate
furore died down, scmetrrg that our foous on
forward selling aflows Ls the lexioility to do. Demand
remainad bucyant however and neither have we seen
significant pressure on labour availability or matertals
due o the result, espacially as there has not oeen a
dramatic increase n the supply of hormes 1n London
We will continue tc momitor the negotiahicrs with

the EU, lock:ng for stability throughaout the process
and assurances as soon as possible on the rights of
EU workers to remain in the UK. Wa consider that
these are aiready vital considerations for botk sides,
which suppor:s our confidence In sontinuing with our
currert strateqy for growtn,

The shift of our business model towards puild 1o
rent has neiped to cushion us from the impact of
the wax changes. In any case saies to gverseas
nvestars have remamed rooust, evidencead by the
launches of the Liberty Builoing just over a year
ago and mora recently City Nor:h, we have seer
particular success over the last thras years in sselling
ta investors based in China. This is cespite any
potental tempering of demanc in relatian tQ lsaving
the B ¢r the adaiticnal three per cent starp duty,
both of whieh have been offset for sorne ouvers by
favourable movemants in exchange rates.

Wa have, however, seen a reduction n the rumoer
of UK based mdiv auals seek.ng to nvest in buy-
to-lat properties, These nvestors nave beer mors
sensitive than overseas buyers to tre uncertainty
resulting from the EU referardum, ard have aise
pesn deterred Ly the increass in stamp duty and the
reducing ablity to kerefit from tax raligf on morigage
merast. Daspite these tax changes the attragtive
-ental yields that are bringing instituticnal inrvestors
into the rarket should also encourage Irdiv-duals o
invest aga n once their confidence raturns.

Objectives and sirategy

Cur primary objective is to build more homes N
LLonder and ta grow in a controlled rmanner to meet
some of the shortfall betwsen supply and need in the
caprtal. We are on track to achieve our stated amoiton
o generate sgnificant growth in pre-tax orelits over
e next two years, and also to create a platform for
sustaimng a bigger husiness tnal can gontinue o
grow N the jonger term.

Our strategic pronty is 1o further increase our activity
in the build to rent sector. Dur business 1s very capital
mtensive and this restricts our rate of growth if we are
retying on cur own sources of capital. A key attraction
of buid to rent s that forward funded developments
da not reguire much, if any, of our equity, nor any
debt finance. This allows us to accelerate the growth
of the nusiness, arovided we have the cperational
capacity 0 do 80, ard 1o combne that with reducing
our longer term reliance on debt.

As well as the focus on increasing our presence n
build to rent, we arg expanding our geographicat
reach beyond our historical heartlandg cf boraughs
i tre East of London. We stll expect t© operate

in Qur key poroughs, but as tha busiNess grows

n scale we are lookng 1o broaden the spread of
ndividual sale and ouiid 1© reni opportunites. An
gxample of this in aguon is the Sautn Kdburn ate in
partngrship with Brent. a borcugh in whicn we have
nat praviousyy developed.



We believe our skillset can be ceployad to develop
homes across London, maintaining a strong gipeline
cf developmer’s for indwvidual buyers in non-prireg
iceations and for buld to rent investors.

Another decision that nas resulted from our
increased scale is to target farger sites, typicaly
of 30 cr more units, In arder 0 secure econcmiss
of scals, This aiso fits with the minimum scale of
investmant for most owid to rent invastors and
ensures we are not spending tme on smalier sites
that histoncally contribute much less to profits and
dispraoportonately take up operationai capacity.

Having a solid foundation of forward sold properties
naw allows us the flexibility to hold back some opert
rrarket homas antil later in the developrment bime
frame. srould we wish o take advantage of an actve
owner-occupler market, supported in some rstarces
by Help to Buy. We have seen recent success with
Help tc Buy at Bermondsey VWorks, having held tack
the rasidual availability with that cbjective.
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We ao not expect Help to Buy to necome as
fungamenta to Telford “omes as it 1S to many cthe-
developers, but it will help us 1o maintain support for
those whao still wish to purchase their own home,

We are planning dedicated saies centres on more of our
sites, working together with our ceniral sales location n
Stratford 'n these ‘rstances, mcluding at Bow Garden
Square, St Pauls Way, £3 and the remainder of New
Garden Quartsr, we will b8 commencing sales much
later in the develcpment process than wouid normaly
be the case. We expect this to bring a healthy balance
10 gur overall sales mix ensuring that we are able 1o
fiexicly adjust to any future demanc cranges across
Gur various customer segments.

I~ the last 12 months we have taxen a nig step
forward in terms of our commitment to sustairability.
Vo now have a Head of Sustairabiity and a fuily-
fiedged strategy, ‘Buikding a Living Legacy', inciuding
a commitment to achiev ng a range of targets aver
the next sevan years.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Ihese targets address econwmic, social and
environmental aspec*s of building a sustainable
business ‘or the benefit of all our stakeholders.
You can read more atout this on tage 38.

Ever mindful of needing to work as sfficiently as
p0ssible, we have ncreased our adoption of modern
methods of canstructon o soeead up the delivery of
certain develapments, something the Government
has oeen encouragirg the sector to do. Not anly is
ttis peneficial to our customers and investors but

it abso mproves our return on caprtal. Examples
include the off-site constructior of brick cladaing at
our Manhattan Piaza development and the use of a
igntweignt metal frame structure at The Pavillors, one
of our puild to rent schernes. Along with the rest of the
ndustry, we will be laoking at how we caningrease
the use of tNese metheds ane others 1o deliver homes
more quiCkly and efficiently,

More detall on our strategy 1s available on page 12,

Cuticok

We anticipate that tne lack of supply of new homes
relative t© need In non-prime areas of London

will continue to provide ample gogoriunty tor the
grawth of Telford Homes in the foreseeable utdre,
Cur ingreased focus on guild to 1ant, with de-nisked
sales requinng redused levels of equity and no delt
france, allows us o evaiuate ways ‘0 grow ata
fastar rate Afthougn owid 1o rent projects generate a
mocerately iower nel margin, our return on capial s
much reproved ard 'onget tern gebl requirarments
will be lower,

TECTSECTN e W e 1mCraas Ny apcen e
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YWe anticipate that over e next faw years build to
rant could represent as mucn as haif of our total
revenue pipeline.

The Beard is somfortacke with the development
pipeline, and we have avoided acquiring land at
irflated pnces. We have equity and debt available
‘0 ada o tha pipeline, ard wik do this where
apporiunities are cons:sient with our stralegy and
meet our financial hurdles. Prospects spanning

a variety of locations are being evaluated on an
ongong bags and in greater numicers than in 2016.
This, together with the successful tenders for our
recent acquisitions, 13 encouraging in terms of
secLring access to our most mpaortant raw matenal.

We are confident In our product and market pface

as we look ta e future. Cver B0 per cent of the
anticipated gross profit for the yaar (o 31 March 2018
nas oeen sacured, angd Telford Horres is on track 10
galiver aver €40 mrilion of orofit Befare tax. In addibon,
for the year 1o 37 March 2019, we nave secured cver
B0 per cent of the antiwpated gross probt and expect
profit before tax to exceed £LC milkon,

The strength of our perfarrrance and qutlcok are
testament to the hard work and commitmaent of
everyone at Telford Homes, | am prouc of our way
of working, our exemplary rate of employea rerention
and our axcellent Peallh and safety “ecora and ail
the more o m view of the exceptional growth we
have achioved ir e 133t ew years, | wart o "hank
sveryone that makes Taiford Homes 4 specat olace
o wor4 ne ook forwerd to anctber exciting ger od
of growth anaad.

Jon Di-Stefano
Chief Executive
30 May 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
DEVELOPING IN LONDON:

A RECORD YEAR

‘Telford Homes has experienced another year of excellent
results, achieving growth in profit before tax for the
fifth year running from £3 million in 2012 to just over

£34 million this year.'

The Group has seen success in forward seling
homaes tnrough traditional channels but has also
increased its focus and prominence in the London
build to rent sectar, entering 1 three mare build
te rent contracts n the year. The Group has
continued to invest in fand and work in oragrass
but stll has substantial neadroom withir its

£180 miltion reveiving credit “acility avallabie

to achisve 1ts aspirations of increasing profit

to over £50 million by Marcn 2019,

Presentation of joint ventures

In the year to 31 March 2015, the Group adoptea
IFRS 1° ‘Joint Arrangements’ which states

that joint ventures should be accounted ‘or as
acuty imvestments rather than oy proportional
consolidation, The Group's joird venturas are

an integral part of the Gusingss and as such

the Board believes that the financial results are
most appropriately presented using proportionat
consolidation which means including the relevant
snare of the results of joint ventures in sach lire
of the income statement and balance sheet. This
therefore remains the methed of presemation within
the Group's internal maragement accounts.

The Board has prepared an ingome statement and
a balance sheet using oropcrtional consclidatior
along with Cenerally Accapted Accaunting
Principles {GAAR) compliant versions presenting
joint vertures as equity investments. The key
performance ndicators and other figures withir th.s
repert include the Group's share of jeint venture
rgsults. The Board suggests investors follow its lead
in assessing e business or the results that include
a proportional share of joint venturas.

Operating results

Revenue, ncluding e Groug's share of jont
vertures, Fas increased to arecord £2391.9 million
2016 £245.6 milion), up 18.9 per cent on the prior
year. On a GAAP bas's. excluding the Grougp's sharg
of joint ventures. revenue In¢reased 1o £266.0 miflien
{2016 £242.7 mulion).

Katie Rogers
Group Financial Director
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

fhe number of open market residertial comoleuons
was lower than the prior year at 289 (2018, 482),
nowaver the average seliing orice was tugher

at £531,000 {2C16: £417,000). The reduction in
completicns 1S purely down to avaitability of timshed
stock witn fewer units ptysically available o
nandaover .n the currert financial year. Simlaily, the
increase in average price 's a furction of the mix of
developments comgleting in each year in terms of
product and thelr location together with relatively
madest sales prica inflation.

The reguction in reverue fom cpen market
camplations was maore than offset by an increase
in koth subsidised affordable housing revenue and
build to rent revenua recogrised in the year. In

the year to 31 Marcn 2017, the Group exchanged
contracts to deliver 400 affordable homes (2016:
87 homes) ana entered into three new build to rent
conracts to deliver 387 bulld to rent nomes (2016:
156 fomes) ovar the next few years.

The Group continues tc recognise revenue from the
sale of affordable nomes and bula o rent homes

urder contract accounting on a percentage of
compoletion basis throughout the build programme,
Fovenue recognised from affordalme housing was
£50.1 milion (2016: £19.1 milliory and from build

to rent contracts it was £76.5 million (2016: €189
mJlion). This Includes the new contracts exchanged
during the year together wim the orgoing profit
recagnition on contracts exchanged in pravious
years.

The increased focus or buld to rent will, over time,
resuit in a greatar proportion of the Group's revenue
and profit being recognised on a percantage of
completion basis over the life ¢t the deveiopment
as opposed to irdividual open market salgs wnere
revenus and prott which 1s recognised at the

point of legal completion. Suild o rent sales can
therefora result 1IN the Graup recognising revenue
and profit earlier than if the homes had been sold
o individual purchasers.

A further advantage of budd 1o rent sales is that they
are forward funded by the investors and thersfore
thay affer exceptional returns on capital.



Farward funding broadly means ar initial oayment
reimbursing the cost of the fand followed by monthly
construgtion payments and finaly a paymant on
completon. As such very little, if ary, aquity is

usec during construction ara no debt 1s requirad.

In return for these benefits the Grouo s accepting

a moderately reducad net margin on tulld to rent
contracts with a lower sale price being partly offset
oy savings in seling expenses and interest costs.

Dunrg the year 0 31 March 2017, the Group soid
one small undeveloced site for £5.0 million, Similar

to the two sites sola in the prior year for a total

of £6.7 roillion, this safe is a resuit of 4 change in
strategic direction where smaller sites have become
iess attractive to build out and the Group is able to
leveraga its greater operational size to focus on larger
scale developments. The Graup has also cortirued
its programme of dispesing of alder freenold assats,
generating ~evenue of £4.9 million (2C16: £1.7 miilion).

Gross profit has increased to £63.2 million from
£53.1 million, including the Group's share of joirt
ventures. Gross profitis stated after expansing Igan
interest that has been capitalised within invertories
of £1.9 millicn (2016 £1.9 miillion} and, pefore
cnarging this intarest, the grass Margin was 22.3 per
cent comparad o 26.5 per cent tast year.

The decrsase n gross profit margin was as sxpected
with two main reasons for the reducton. Firstly, the
marg- achieved cn cpen market sale compietions

af 25.4 per cent was iower than that achieved last
year (2016: 27.3 per cent) but shghtly anead of tne
Group’s target when appraising new sites of 24 ner
cert. The margin recogmsed 01 Dpen mar<et nNomes
15 expectad 1o trend down towards the target margin
over time as olger developments whicn nenefittec
from more sigrficant sales price indlaticr ard minireal
hura costinfiation are replaced with sites acorased
more recently.
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rapresants the normal target margin of 24 per carmt
less savings n sefling expenses and interast costs of
crca eight per cent and tharsfore a net difference of
up ‘o four per cent offset by a supstantially improved
rerum on capital, The margin achieved on the build
to “ant revanue recognised n the year to 31 March
2017 was well ahead of that target at 16.0 per cent
due to some of the land bang purchased at more
advantageous rates prior o bacoming part of the
puild to rent partfolio. Future build to rent marging are
still expected to be around 12 \o 13 per cent,

Administrative expenses have increased 16 £20.8
mitlion 2016 £18.3 milion) ncluding the Groue's
share of jpint ventures and £20.7 milion excluding jomt
ventures (2016: £19.1 million). This increase is mainly
due o higher emplayse costs as the Group cortinues
o recruit and rewars the taient reguired o establsn

a structure appropriate for growth. As a percentaga

of revenue adrminisirative expenses refmain consistert
year On year at cica sever per cent.

Seling cxpenses have reducea signdicantly to £5.1
million 12016: £3.4 million) mcluding the Group's
share of joint ventures ard £4.1 mifion excludirg the
Graup's share of joint ventures (2016: £8.2 million;,
This reduction is partly cue to the lowear number

of open ma-ket completions but aiso reflects the
Group's move tewards puild to rent, which has
regduced tine number of hones available to sell

on the open market. Danng the year, there was

oniy one signficant faunck, Gity Nort, incurring
selling expenses of £0.9 milon, compearad to three
launches in the previous year which ragylted in
combined sellirg expensas of £4.5 miillor. The
hornes soid under the thrae build 10 "ent cantracts
anterad o during *he year would praviousty have
pean anticoatec 12 be sold on the opern marxat at
sare part aver the rext few years and therefars
the buila o -ent fransacuons will generate sigrificart
sales cost savirgs over the same perod.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Proft befare tax ncluaing the Group's shareg of

joint ventures has increasea to a record hugh of

£34.1 milion from £32.2 million and to £34.6 million
excluding the Group's share of joint ventures (2016
£32.3 mibon}. The Board expects the year to 31 March
2018 to show signifcant growth in pre-tax prafits

and agan in the following year. A large proportior of
this grow!™ is already visible due to the scale of the
develcpment pipefine and the Group's substantial
forward sold position.

Finance costs

Finance costs actually incurred in the year, including
the Groug's share of joint ventures increasad e
£5.3 millicn {(2C16: £4.5 million) and reduced © £4.3
rmillion excludirg the Grouge's shara of joint venturas
12016: £4.4 million).

Average borowings i the year were higher at £55.1
mithon {2016: CE0.6 muhan), with tre mterest chargcd
on tnase borrowings of £2.2 milicn (2016 £2.2
million) being capraised imo work In orogress as
required by 1AS 23,

Firiance costs charged directly 1© the income
statement primariy consist of amartised arrargement
faes and non-atilisaton fees on the Group's £180
mufion revolving ¢redit faciity and the new 2110 rmifhon
faciity with LaSalle Besidertial Fnance Fund secured
N July 2016 to fund our joint venture scheme, Tity
North. Nor-utilisation fees inciLdng our share of joint
ventures have increased to £2.5 million (2016 £1.7
milicn), of which £1.8 milicr s attnioutable to tha
revoling credit faciity (2016 £1.7 miior) and £0.9
million 1a the City Nortn facility {Z016: Tnil).

Dividend

Tra Board's poluy 13 70 pay one thd af garings as
anicends. Followng the equsy placing sorcluzed 0
Novamber 2015, 'ng Board commitied to oayng &
Anecend equivalonT i one thirs of earmings ad;-s’ed
[ reme T aibatee stact of tha aew shras for
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tour per cen: basac on the share prce at 31 March
20017, The Anal dividend ‘s expected 1o be paid on
14 July 2017 ¢ those sharehoiders on the regster
a* the close of business on 16 June 2017,

Despite an norease n profit after tax, earnings

per share has decreased from 39.3 pence to 38.8
perce, This is dug to the equity placing which
ncreased the number of shares in issue throughout
the year to 31 March 2017 but only for part of the
pravious year, thereby increasing e weaighted
average number of shares in issue year an year.

Balance sheet and cash

Net assets at 31 Marcn 207 were £204.3 million,

an increass from £187.0 mifion last year mainiy due
10 retained profits, This equates 1o net assets per
share of 271.3 pence {31 March 2016 249.8 pence).
There has been a signiicant amount of INvestment in
land and work in progress with inventories, mctuding
the Group's share of joint vertures, increasing ‘from
£285.6 milken to £339.4 milicn. Txcluding joint
veriuras, inventorias increased from £238.0 million
1o £287.7 million with the halance being recorded
within investrments :n joint ventues.

lnvestmen: n jcint vanturas has mcreased front £42.1
millior: 1 £47.6 million. The ncrease 1s marly a result
of completing on tne purchase of Gallions Quarter
during the year. This is a jont venture with Nottng Hill
Housing Group and was part of the acquisiion of the
regeneration business of Lnited mouse Developrrents
In Septemper 2915, Sompletion on this site was
conditoral on he satisfaction of cartain conditicns
which were corchuded on 28 July 2018

The mapority of the invenicries balance s lard

and work i pragress with Tenimal finshed

stock units due 0 cur successful forward sales
strategy Tha Group does cot typically land Dank
atles and trersfore the vast mapnty of land helg
witnin smeeniones 1S under construction or1s teirg
grogressed hraugh die gtanning system. Inckudea
withun inventories are £4.3 mikon of freenoly assets
heto for future -gsale (2016 25 2 milier:,
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Katie Rogers
Group Financial Dirsctor
30 May 2017
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PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

DEVELOPING IN LONDON:
MANAGING RISK

The Group’s financial and operational performance is subject to a
number of risks. These risks are continually assessed by the Board
to mitigate and minimise their impact on the business. There are
also a number of risks which are outside of the Group’s control.

The principal risks facing the business are set out below.

Risk

Potential impact

Mitigation

Commentary

Atiracting
and retaining
high-calibre
employees

Ar inabdity to "egrat and rctain
amployees with sippropnate
skilf sets can introduce cost,
delays n pring rrg developments
forwarg or quality issues.
Increased employee turnover
car create instabifty and
urgertanty. Skills ard
expanence lost are difficult to
replace and loss of knowledge
within the business can affect
overall efficiency.

L

Tne Sroup s Hurnan fResources programme includes
managermnen: trainec schemes, succession planning
and trasning tafiored to each discipline.

Remuneration packages are senchmarkead against
industy standards to cnsure compaitiveness.
Empioyee statistics including wrnover and absence
are monitored monthly.

Exit intervigws and an employee engagemant survey
are ysed o identify any areas for improvernent.

Skilled emptoyess are
critical to defivering
the Graup's growth
strategy, improving key
fnanciat metnos and
e sontinued defvery
of atiractive relurrs to
snareholders.

Availability of
materials
and labour

The avallability of materials and
supcontracted lmoour tor each
site can affect coth tha length
of the canatruction programme
and the cost of construction.
Build cost inflation will impact
drrectly on the margir acheved
an each site where thig s in
excess of torecasts.

Manrng of tte construction pregramme and umely
managemant of the tender precess reduces the rigx
of delays.

Thorough tender process ensures that competitive
rates are achieved on evary ‘rade.

wWorking in sartrership weh subeontractsrs and
making umealy paymenls ‘o ould maiually beneficial
relationships.,

Close momtoring of tulid cast nflation a2na
appropnate provisionng, ccupled wik ar earty fixung
ot buikd costs wirere possible,

Mhe outcome of the
EU rotererdum nas
increased uncertaunty
around iabour
avaijabiity, howaever no
mmeadate ¢range has
been notect.

Cash
requirements
and bank
finance

Significant mtial cutlays cf
scapital suppored oy bank
finarce arg requirec tor
oroperty development, This
15 coupled with lengihy tima
onriods before the maority

of the cash inflows on gacn
prafect. he avadatsity of
sJutfcient barrowing facilites is
thereicrs crtical 'o enat's the
servicing at habilibes,

-

»

The Group rmrartains a detaled casn flow forecast whizh
exignds five years ahaad and s sutact ta canunual
ra.ggyossmert and senstivity analysis © ensure 1S not
operating beyond '3 financ.al capacty.

The cash flow pos.tion 1s revicwed by the Board and the
GrouD's bar<ing partnars on a “edqJlar basis.

The (roup has axcollert relaticnshios with s banking
pa-trers ard ras secured sufficent ‘aciltics 1o enable
t1p take advantage of appropnate ‘and buy.ng and
operational oppori.ties

Lienosits recemed Fom orwang seling propertes
provice 2 scurce of enwly whick can ce rervested n
new sites

The Geuo's ncraased focus 20 bodd [ "ert res s ©
casr inflows nan ar e the developren ool

Tne Groun has
sontinuad to 'nyest
JEane ana workon
prograss out st has
substantial beadroom
wethen dg £180 milon
revalvirg cred tfacility
avalatle to achave (s
grawin aspirations.




Risk

Potential impact

Mitigation
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Commentary

Construction

The construction process

18 critical 10 the =fficiert and
timely defivery of pronerties

ta purchasers wach affects
both cash flow and customer
satistaction. The quality of the
construction work and finish

n zach praperty affects the
reputation of the Growp and can
impact on regeat purchase ang
racommendanon ratas

Economic
environment

The Groug ensures that tne night preduct and
sysiems solutions are ntegrated early in the
deveiopment lifecycle th minmise projact nsk,
The construchon teams work very sicsely with the
custaomer senvice Team and quality raviews are
performed at each stage of construction.

Customer surveys arg
conducted or nandover
of nomes and resuits
are analysed to imorove
product guality.

Demand for the Greup's

nomes from goth investors and
owner-occuters s dependent
on conhoarae ;n the sconomy
and local housing markets. This
confidence s heavly influenced
oy 1Aciors outs ge the Graup s
sontral such as interest rates,
the availatiity and costs

of merigage finance, rental
ncomes, Jnemployment and
ingreasing consumet casts for
otrer gaods and seruoes.

The wider economis mpacis
of the outcome of the L
-eferendum may also pe fell by
e ousebulding ndustry n
future.

Tre Group's polcy is 1o sell eady in the cevelopment
process, where practical and possible. to rmiimise
nisk and the numbper of unsold units at practical
completion,

rorward sales are being secured wth Mousing
associations and overseas and UK based buyers.

Build to rert sales are also helpirg to give certamty to

cash flow and sarn highar cagpdal returns,

The economic impacls
of tha outcome of

the EU referendum

will be monitared

and rmiugated where
possible by the Board
wath the appropnate
action being taken in a
tirmely manner,

Health and
safety

A Jgtenoratn
nedll 3 satgty sianeares
Sould aut eroinvass
SOMFAGICTS sder visiiors or
the general publc at « skoof
NPty O e arn oot

e Gooup s

eAG G Rgahon S e a'hes
W dar aygne Telfarg Homaoes

vy astmenian irBinmg
seiet, o all pmmloyees ano extansive coboies aeld
procecLras all caprtrtute 0 onsueing nat rugh
standdrds are ma ntansid.

g aramohior oF neaim and

The Growp Pas a dedicated eada ano Sataty
A wita Tonduct rogeainr noalte ars
dugiiariee Ly o xRl e

satetv andits,

i S5 AN Eoaredares 302 moudio T

WeTE, 3 e 308

R

TAr O 0O v nent

Continuad foous woon
raalth and salety sec<s
1o turther raduce Ny
rates and manage (the
rigsks nharant i the
CONSTrLClON Drocess.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

Risk

Potential impact

Mitigation

Commentary

Land
aequisition

The Group neads new land to
mantan a Jdevelooment pipefine
and to erabia the business ¢
cominue 1o oparate a7t a cerain
capacity. Trig land needs to ke
sourced n appropniate locatons
and where optimuwm olanning
sonserts can be obtared.

"he appraisal process that
determings tha price paid far
land i1s enicalin mantaning
margins and raturn on egity at
acceptable levals,

e The Group's strong rglationships with vanecus land
owner s, Inclucing local authontigs and atierdable
nousing providers, plays akey rcle nots ability i
acguire new sites.

A robust land appraisal process ensures @ach projact
15 francially vatle and corsistent with the Group s
strategy.

“he Group has
successtully addeag

tc its devesopment
cipeline 1 the last fow
rronths, That piceling
raoresanis over 4,000
nomes valied at

£1.5 billion,

Planning
process

Deays n achiewng suitable
planning permissiors can aftect
the nuerbor of properties that
can ne brougnt to market and
imeact the muing of future
cash flows. Failure 10 achieve

a switable planning permission
“nay lead to cost write of's or
“educed margins on ngividual
devoiopments,

= A planming ard nsk assessment 5 conducted pror to
any land purchase.

Strong relationships are maintained with local
authontas planmng otrcers and local communities
tc test understand underlyng policy and planning
prospects. While this cannot rermove planning rsks i
mitigates them as much as pessitle.

The Board ensurcs
that the Group is

rot overexposed

10 olanning risks

my hmiting the total
irvestment in ites
wiihout a planning
permissan at any one
hme.

Puolitical
environmant

Changes in laws and
ragulatens can have a direct
mact on the Group and

the costs 'ncurred on 2ach
davelopment, Changes in both
local and natonal Gevernment
can have a drect beanng or
the regulatory ervironmment.

e The potenbal mpact of cnanges In Government
policy and new laws ard regulatons are meonitorea
and communicated throughout the business and
operaions are plarnec accordingly,

There is broad consansus amongst all main political
parbes that more needs ta be done 1o improve the
supply of rew housing which s a positve for the
housebuiding mdustry.

Fre early calling of a
gererdl slection mn Jung
2017 has increasad
uncertainty . the short
arm, however ance the
asull 1s known 1 should
provide greater clanity
looking abeud.

Sustainability

raiure to address sustainabiity
1ssues chulg aftect the Group's
ablity to aggure land, gan
Dlarning perrssion, manage
ts repuiation sftectively, and
address the demand for
sustainakie iving.

‘Building a . imng | egacy’ s our strategy 1o oreate places
that will stand tne fes: of time Ly making a positive icng
term controution to London's local cormmumites and

the arvilonment, Y s underpinned by short o lang term
objectives (set out on pages 38 to 45) that will ensure that
susta nability risks are recagnised and addressed.

To manage snvironmental nsks, the Group has put in
place ar Ervironmental Management System that s

accredited o BS 2N SO 140012004 ard s audited

pi-annualy by the Brtish Stardards Institute.

Ag A resporsible
cusiness we have baen
working in innovative
ard sustainable

ways for many yoars.
Maowing forward, we

will Contirue to shape
our ‘Bulding a Living
Legacy' strategy.
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OUR PEOPLE

CREATING A GREAT PLACE TO WORK:
ENGAGING AND DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE

Our employees are at the heart of our business and we consistently

strive to ensure they are engaged and have the opportunity to
develop in a job they enjoy.

Overview

W recogriise that it's our peopls that make
us different, and we strive o recrult, retain,
engage and develop tha best, We pride
ourselves or cur unigque and supportive
culture, and have worked hard to inspire this in
the colleagues that we have welcomed 1o the
organisaton in the last year.

in an average day we have ovar 1,000 paople
aon our sites and at nead coffice, of which 248
are directly employed with the remainder being
employed oy our subcontractor partners.

Learning and development

Foliowing the appantment of a dedicated We are proud

Learning and Development Managsr we have

anhanced our Management Trainae scheme, to have above
and now have a progrgmme for five agas ,ndustry

of the business: Technical, Commaerciak;

Constricton; Engineenng and Planning. we ~ @Ver age levels
are working to ensure that alil trainees receive

a cansistent experience of being mentaored Of emp on ee

and developed, by enhancing the skills of aur
management team.

retention, which
is currently

Dwer tha last year, a record number of people running at 90%-
frorm across the business atiended ane or

mare training sourses and worksheps. and

mare than one third of ouw senior managers

achisved an ILM (Institute of Leadership and

Managerment) accraditation. We are proud

o rave besn awarded a signdicant grant

from the CIT8 (Construction Industry Training

Board) to invest 'n cur tramnirg schemes.

As well as equipoing Telforas Homes
employees with the skills they need, we are
committed to working o address the skils
shortage in the wider industry. We have an
average intake of five Higner Apprentices

per year, we encaurage our subconraciors
1o offer apprenticeships, and the Group

also partners with local authonties such as
through Sxillsmatch in Tower Hamilets to offer
opnofrunities to young pecoie.



Recruitment and retention

Last year we strengthened our team, particularly
in Operations. Just over 50 new startersicined
Talford Horres, mearing that 20 per cent of
our workforce was naw to the organisation.

We expect this figure to e higher next year, 1o
suport the growtn of the business. Even with
this rate of growth we have been atle to retan
our unique culture, thanks to the Telford Homes
behaviours that run througn the business

and which are now ircluded as a core element
of our induction process. These include: strong
and corsistent performance; respect for our
peopie and customers; teamwork; integnty

and comrmitment, and effective leacership,

Qur workforce is diverse, and our behavicurs
felp us strive o drive parformarcein a
corsistent way across the team.

Employee engagement

We undertook aur first employee satisfaction
survey in July 2016, The response was
excellent, and we were extramely pleased that
overall satisfaction with Telford Homes as an
emgloyer and intention to be working for Telford
-omes ir 12 months’ time were both at levels
axceeding 90 per cent. These results reflect
now hara we strive to create a great place to
work, The survey also highlignted a few areas
for improvemeant anc we nave put in place
action plans across al departments to agdress
somre of the issues raised,
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HEALTH & SAFETY

KEEPING PEOPLE SAFE:
AN EXCELLENT RECORD

The occupational health and safety of everyone involved

in our business or affected by it is a vital consideration

in everything we do.

Policies and procedures

The Board actvely promaotes a positive
oeeupat.onal health and safety culture

within the business and ensures ihat this is
reflected ' all of our policies and procedures,
as well as in our approach to the training

and development of the pecpie involvad in
our operations. Qccupational heaith and
safety is the first agenda item at manthiy
Board mestings.

We nave deveioped a comprahensive set of
policies and procedures covenng all of our
operations, and these are constantly updated
and communicated to relevant employees
and everyone else working on our sites. Our
procadures identify all of the relevant risks and
hazards that are likely to be encountered in
the course of cur work and, moreg importantty,
set out the appropriate precavtionary conirol
measures to ensure waork 1s undertaken safély.

We also require our supply chain partners to
smploy compeatent people and encourage
their cantinuing professional development.
We expect the highést occupational heaith
and safely stardards from each supplier, and
this is & key consideration when awarding
contracts. We momitor our suppliers on an
ongoing basis and take the necessary steps
o ensure they meet our high expectations,
nciuding offering subsidised on-site raning
specifically for their smpioyees, often at no
cost 1o our partners.

The Group's Health ana Safety Management
Systemn ts accredited to BS OHSAS
18001:2007 and s audited every six meonths
by the Briish Standards Institution {BSl} in
accordance with their stringent processes.

We havs an Sxecutive Safety Committes and
an QOperationat Safety Forum whose members

This year our
occupational
health

and safety
performance
was once again
recognised by
ROSPA when
we received
our eighth
consecutive
gold award.



are senior employess with extensive industry
experience. 3oth of nese groups mest regularly
and arg instrumental in deveicong significant
changes to the way ccoupational health and
satety is managed and to our policies and
vrocedures. This ensures we are constantly

up to date with any changes in working
practices or reguiations. Jchn Fitzgerald is the
Boara director with overall responsitility for
occunational health and safety.

Training and development

Telford Homes operates in an industry whare
up 1o date qualifications, standards and
knowiedge are vital to the safe and successful
operation of the business. The Board views
training, particularly through aporenticeships
and our Managemert Tranee urcgrarnmes,
as an essential investment in the future of

the Group and the canstruction mdustry

rore groadly.

wa rvest n @ ngorous health and safety traiming
programme 1o ensure that al employees nave
tne approprials skills and knowledge, and these
ara evaluated n the context of Crospective
changas 1© the sxternal snvircrment. The
needs of memuoers of staff joining ine busness
arc carefully assessed to centify anc aadress
30ECH raning reQuirements,

Performance

Thi yaar o 3 Marrn 20°7 RRE Dnon 9.
S OIS AN B0, I Dr

L TREDE DArSET
0L worked, Trors aom ost g sgportacic
CUrss B0 aurng 18 UeNnd iaaaitieg i
am Acooert Floo.enc, 30w

ATED - g T
EENATHLA YD DN e ]

[ISlo Ealalial s 2 A 2T e pear

A wnn T3S

L 3T Narth

We caretully monitor the nature of any accidents
or incidents to ensure we learn from them, and
adjust cur traming requirements and procedures
accorgingly. The majority of our accidents this
year arose from simple tehawoural falings of
the people Involved, and we are continuing with
our behavioural focused traning programmes
to make people awzare of Mese basic mistakes
and the smpacts they can have.

Tnus year our occupational health and satety
periormance was once again recagnised

vy the Royai Society for the Prevention

of Accidents {RoSPA} wien we recaved

our sighth corsecutive gold award, and
simiarly our rmanagement of accupational
road nsk was -ecognised with a gold award.
These awards and tne BSI certdication are
recognition of the very high stardard of the
Group's overall approach to occupaticral
healtn and safety.

Summary

Although our occupational healtn anc satety
performance ir the year ras peen axcellent,
wa are no compiacent and continug 1o strive
for improverment. We will ensure trag, as the
business grows, we have systermns in place to
Iramn new staff and supghers in our policies
and procedures

Wa rema n conficert ‘bai our cororehersive
oroceguares and ~vestmart ntraning mear
rnat feltarg -omes s dong Breryting
possmle o e m sg neatne and safety
CSRs R TR R TNE B ISIress, now andir me

faraseeabie futura
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PERSON HOURS
WORKED

2.55m

ACCIDENT
FREQUENCY RATE

0.12




38

SUSTAINABILITY

OUR NEW STRATEGY:
‘BUILDING A LIVING LEGACY’

As a responsible business, we have been working in innovative

and sustainable ways for many years. We launched our ‘Building a
Living Legacy’ (BLL) sustainability strategy in 2016. It underpins our
commitment to create places that stand the test of time by making a
positive long term contribution to London’s built environment.

Economic, social and environmental principles are central to our
business strategy and support our ambition to create thriving places
for future generations. Under the strategy, we have developed a
Living Legacy framework to help manage four priority areas and

supporting targets, where we believe we can have the greatest
positive impact by 2024.

SHORT TERM TARGETS

Creating thivrg
olaces that
T enable people to
PO live sustamatie
FS A lifaxtylas

Mak rg our

maney waork
e narder througn
e elhgient use of
“ELOUrGes aGross
OUr DLSINESS

GO

Sollaporanng #ita
our parteers to
denyty :naovatve
Duliding
lesnrinues 3nd
deyver tha nomes
of tha furure

Nt g
DRGEIE Gl
EARUTIRS SN BN LN

2016 TARGETS

e Create a Living
L.egacy developmant
framowark 1ang best
prachce placemaking
onrciples

& Jut largets o reduce
arargy. grsenhouse
348 eIMEgiens and
wastes and incrogse
rgoyehng rate

= Agige BgLs
Aeas 1o research
NS sustarable
TROVALONS

* Set a larget 10
INCredase ool Jse of
sustamnably sourced
birngsesr

« —grablisn nnovaton
wesrk vy grauos for gl
new devsicpments

2017 TARGETS

» Tral the Lving
Legacy develepment
[rarmewark on ona
new pIoject

® Develop a _ving
tegacy wolki

» Afigr our
procurement Cohcy
with 'Bulang a Lwving
| eqacy’ oojectves

* Sel targats to reduce
walar corsumpbon

* Presant 3 yeany
SOMETA T T O Ee
sustanable ounding
solutons to desigr
tearms

® Forgire ol onr

ST L0t Nt

I T T



A new approach

This 's tne first year of reporting our sustainability
performarce aganst our BLL strategy. The
strategy will enaple us to enhance tne quality

cf life for our customers, while supporting our
operations and delivering valug for our stakahglders
ard shareholders.,

Launchag party ir response tc known
national policy and the London Plan, the BLL
strategy was dsveiopad through a detailed
poltical, ecoramic, segial technological, legal
and envircnmertal (PESTLE) analysis ard a
collaborative materiality assassmeant.

Mowirg forward, we will continue to shape the
strategy taking -nto sonsideration changes tc the
above, as well as sectoral anaiysis such as JiUs ‘Big
Eight for Real Estate’, which sets out interconnected
sustarablity tfrencs through to 2C20.

Our approach to materiality

As part of our anrual business planning, the Board
set out arrbitiens for formalising our 3LL strategy in
2018. To ensure a robust and transparant approach,
we engaged with our employees and development
oartners to identify the most important sustanacil:ty
issues fur Tefford Homas and our stakeholders.
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The materality review consisted of internal
workshops, key stakehcider irterviews, 2 peer
anaiys:s and review cf sustainabiiity lagislation.
nctuding ar analysis of our pesition in the
NextGeneratior sustainability benchmark.

This process enabied us to develcp a ciear
materiality matnx. identify our key focus areas
and create a roadmap to 2024, complete with
argets ana key perfermance .ndicators, Through
our research, we have alsc set the ameition to
mprove an cur current 18th ptace position In the
NextGeneration berchmark of UK —ousebuilders,
aming to be in the top 10 by 7018,

Strong sustainability governance

Fallowing our materiaity review, a detalled
recammendation was made for the 3oard to prowide
oversight and High-ievel sustainability governance,
whicn led 1o the creation of a dadicated BLL Steenng
Committee. Our Chief Executive chairs the cormmittee.

In ine with best practice, we will report prograss
against the strategy by adopting an integrated
repocriing aporeach in the future. This will ensure that
we ars comprehensively communicating our journey
‘owards BLL to a wider audience.

QOver the next few pages we autline our progress
across each of the four prority areas to date.

OUR SUSTAINABILITY MISSION

Built by passionate people and strong relationships, we will
use innovative land, design and development solutions to
create a legacy of high quality sustainable homes and places.
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SUSTAINABILITY

LIVING LEGACY:
CREATING THRIVING PLACES

We are committed to creating a legacy of high quality sustainable
homes, mixed use buildings and thriving places across London.
Through collaboration with local stakeholders, our approach to place
shaping will bring economic prosperity and healthy, sustainable
lifestyles for residents, occupants and visitors.

OBJECTIVE 1:
Create a Living Legacy framework using best practice principles

Followang a detailed
review of existirg
politios, amerging Jchae
design frameworks.
SOGIORCENOMT G

and environmental
stanoards, and the

Healthy Connections

Places

Kniirmg new
amerging consultaticrs Snsigreng Nealthy Qovelonments Img
of the London Plar, neighbowrhgods the r physical
we rave developed g Fit For th?;;;ngssrt SUTOLAdInGS
compretensive Living
Logany framework. The Future walipang

Frating comeunty
netweorks and supporing
focal 2conamic growth

Fhe f-amewaork consists of
10 prriciples and a series
o' supouring objectives,
whick we pelieve are

vital tewards creatng
strong communthes and
encouragng sustanape
Ifestyles:

Nrawing it easy
Lo Tive sustainably

Living
Legacy

Designing places
tor living

Naturai
Rescurces

Transport

Captunng the gerslis of the
ratural respurcas of the sie
a0 surLedings

Supperung sustanahie
fansnart modes ano
0GEties solutons

Strengthening communities.

£ncouraging sustainable
lifestyies

L.ocal
Housing
Requirements

Relationships

TreaTng A oyt ve lecacy
Oy 2NAVUNG SO MLty

Neounsy loc 2l deman:
ande g omobg
Asp raten

Heritage
& ldentify

Deghra cg .oca
Sulnee Aand ratrg
g orlmincg ey
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Cemptar gengrated (mage

OBJECTIVE 2: OBJECTIVE 3:

Trial the Living Legacy Develop a Living Legacy toolkit
development framework on

. We nave craatec a ookt that will ‘ntorm prgject brefings and e
one new PfojeCt througheut the devetonmert lfecydle o emoed Lwirg | agary

prnGpies at each preject thase.
We have tnalled the framewerk within several new mrxed usa

schemes of varying scales o differng | ondon Boroughe such 25 115 hkely that tha toolkit wili be further developed duneg ths smergirg
o L] H € SuCn - - i
A Z N . consuitatens of the London Plan in 201718, and nuarced online
the LEE Bunding in the London Borcugh of “ower Hamists. Inital : ?Q:‘;Lfl ons cithe .0
stakenolder roviews are nelping us 10 test the princicies and 1ts Propeats.

flaxibitty. We will contnue ‘o test it ard gatrer imporant feedback to
inform our approach mowing forwara

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE:
Monitoring trends to create a Living Legacy

Yo safeguard our strategy ac~o e delver a nositve long term contributor 1o

_ondor's but amy ronment, we ~avs undertaken
3 detaned analysis of e seoienconomic ard ary conreantal onertes in @

ss-secuos of _ordon horoughs meloaing Jrert,

Eqfigle Hack gy, hawram, Soutnwark ana Tower Hamlets,

Mzt noehrLe o morla 300 sl veryd

U T dor o wph o SXEeCTE glEemsaus X

ar gL n gl o 3

s ot Bao

VT L MG ATE CIERAT Gy 1R 10T ey de
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SUSTAINABILITY
BALANCED RESOURCES:

EFFICIENT USE OF RESOURCES

ACROSS OUR BUSINESS

With finite resources, rising commodity costs and the ever increasing
drive for operational efficiency, it's vital we balance the resources

we use to contribute to a sustainable future. Our balanced resources
objectives focus on reducing our environmental impact whilst
improving cost efficiency and creating long term resilience.

OBJECTIVE 1:

Set targets to reduce energy,
greenhouse gas emissions and
waste, and increase recycling rate

We have set the goal of reducing waste intensity, erargy usage and
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions oy Hiree per cent per arnum
across al' our stes and corporate offices.

We monitor our Scope 1, 2 and 3 (pusmess traval} GG ermissians
usage fer our pusiness actvines. YWe wil shartly be reporbng our
GG emissions on e sustarabiity section of our corporate wepsite.

n *he ‘ong term, we are ongaged » developing carbon positve and
7oro waste to landfil oractices.

OBJECTIVE 3:

Align our procurement policy
with ‘Building a Living Legacy’
objectives

e have started ~aviewing the ntraduction of BLL amicmions into
ax0sing policies and are olannirt the release of 3 suite ot nterrslated
noficies in 2017

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE:

OBJECTIVE 2:

Set a target to increase our use
of sustainably sourced timber

We are commilted to proounng at least 90 per cont of our lirmbear
trorn sustanable sources sucn as e Foreat Stewardshin Gouncil
'FSCY and *he Pragramine for the Fndorsemant of arest Certificaton
IPETC) Chan of Custody Cerlification. We are also committed 1o
eminatmg the use of ot imber in our speratons and supply chan,

OBJECTIVE 4:

Set targets to reduce water
consumption

Wo haue sat a inree ger cent arnual reduction target for water
‘ntengity across al cur sies ard corporate offices Acditonally, we
have ncorporated Blue-Green Gities nfrastructure in g number of
our proects to contnbiuie 1o arpan blodiversity and premaote raturally
cnanted water cycle systems

Measuring our social return on investment

A% wE MaAK2 370N Droress Agast our onjectvas, we wil ook o reoort the re'aed SOSE savings of our anvronmantal
wNArLes o ling wath the 5acal value ACt a2 il also renort on sur S0gal Raturr oninvestrert B uhen devaioning

ntagratan value crans 1o aelver sustaraple bomes MIXeC LSad SCremmes ana Narghnourtnods
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CREATIVE BUILDING SOLUTIONS:
DELIVERING THE HOMES
OF THE FUTURE

Homebuilding and the delivery of mixed use schemes is becoming
increasingly complex and calls for a broader range of skills, knowledge
and innovatiort than ever before. We have a long tradition of completing
schemes using innovative building solutions, whilst being risk averse and
commercially astute. Our approach emphasises long term collaboration

with partners to identify fit for purpose solutions for our customers.

OBJECTIVE 1:

Agree focus areas for
research into sustainable innovations

A wige range A Creatve and Anovatve culd ng soluiions anc
systerns were iurther develcced i 2016, These were wnplerme:.ed
ACrOSs NUTerDus projects ‘Tom residental homas 16 schools
colieges, zhurches and mosgoes Trose axamokes ara used 0

adwvise chents partrers anc future Irvestors af \he most approprate
dehvery Tedels

Cur expenence ard apdty ¢ marage ask aist mamnzainng hgr
levels of health ard salaty and customer sagstacton s estaman: o

our erdurng atibly ic molemert e « ght soi_bons n the ngn argas.

OBJECTIVE 3:

OBJECTIVE 2:
Establish innovation working
groups for all new developments

Cur prosects are thoroughly assassec oy Mojact Tearrs ana an
=xecahve Steenng Group ic ensurz they rmeet Telforg ~ames’
ngoious standards An Innavation Forum has also beer nsugated
and vanous desgn. ecnnical. procuremen!, orocess arciuding
Fedoing Informaton Medeling (BIMI Morern Methods of
Sonstruction MM, and sccial mNeyaters are being discussed for
‘usther research

Dur Standare Assessment Procesure pRromarcs goss neyond
-egulaton, ano 80 per cent of owr NoMes benefit ror low carcon or
ercwable techncloges

Present a yearly review of inncvative sustainable building solutions

to design teams

Aranye Jf Zreativg Dulding sclurons ard systams were foraily reportad o e B Steer ng Committes and its irnovasion Farur n 2316,
Relovan! solutars are alse br efied 10 d8sqgr Te@ms tr CONSICe 3Won r futurg G ARGES.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE:
Moving towards a circular economy
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SUSTAINABILITY
SMART BUSINESS:

INVESTING IN PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS
TO DELIVER LASTING VALUE

Our people and value chain are our greatest assets, which is why we
are investing in them to deliver our 2024 objectives. We are making
good progress against our smart business objectives and ambition
to create lasting value for our stakeholders.

OBJECTIVE 1:

Set up a Sustainability

Steering Committee and appoint
Living Legacy champions

Executve directors anc semor managers -vere nominated o st on
our B8L Steerng Commattee n 20'6 Merpers were taskad with

operational and stategic defveraclies to cramate sustan acdity watrir
Teltord 110mes

To support BLL . plementation | wving '_2gacy champions were also
appoirted 1o buin capacty and romce sustaraobly kroslecge
thro.gnout *te year. Each dJecartment ~as defi-edd responsicdtiss
ana aczors that contipute o he acnievement of our 2016-908
‘argets

Proyrass aganst 2w araas of (ney.s uill aontinue 10 08 ravessed evecy

thrge rronins ang honzon scannirg aik 2rsure tha we ars quick to
rasEeNM "0 BMmei ging TRNGs

OBJECTIVE 3:

Ensure all our staff compiete

our ‘Building a Living Legacy’
induction

in 2315 alt stalf atterdand 3L resertancng 20d Nevy 312 S rerd

N e 0z straieyy Acr o Ally o Sl Leee B
paeir g s eary ciled ot rorass all poont, oreas

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE:

OBJECTIVE 2:

Embrace the principles
behind the Modern Slavery Act
2015 and carry out a key risk review

We coniinued [C engage with our vale chan e ign* of legslaave
cnange, Gy way of exampie the Modern Slavery Act, andt 1o helo
develop supply <hasr capacity ard reskence gren the civoric
shortage o homes 0 London,

Our promet pay nent and longstanding prefer e s.ppher
commpmenrts ensure we ars maintare g srong relanonssips with aur
xey supplers. An pgate of our value chain © sk assassment will ne
published in 2017

Sinca Tellord Homes was foundec iIn 2000 we have not facen any
wearnings or prosecaions retating (o our sustainabiiity pracacas, Over
e reporting penod. B5's auditng of cur 1ISCIACOT systems i

not ase any nor-conformances, Ir 2017 e sl transiion. fimne the
1SOMA0()1 2004 s1anoarc 20 207 acerediation

OBJECTIVE 4:

Integrate employee wellbeing
questions into our staff survey
Uurng 2017 ve nck.ded weliberg quastgns m oo fie st statf sur ey

I re fagdhac< and -es.lts were sery postr & anc alloezv de 2 goad
glatform tor 3Agong 2ngageimer: ard ke Srn0anson

Building advocacy and strong partnerships
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GOVERNANCE

Application of principles

Although not formally required to do so, the directors have sought to embrace the principles contained in the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Coue) issuad by the Financial Reporting Council applicable to fully listed cormparies, in formulating and

applying the Groug's corporate governance policies. These policies are tailored ta ensure that they are appropriate to the Group's
circumnstances given the size of the Group,

Directors

The Company and Group are managed by a Beard of directors and they have tna necessary skills and experience to effectively
operate and control the business. Thers are nine directors n total, of whom iwo are Non Executive Directors. Frank Nefson

and Jane Earl, the Non Executve Directors, are considered independent and they sit on both the Audit and Remureration
Committegs. The Board meets once a menih and the directors make every effort to attend all Board mestings. Further details cr
the Boara's skills ard experience are set out within their biographigs on pages 48 and 49.

The Board s responsible for taking all major strategic decisions and also addressing any significant operational matters. I addition,
the Board reviaws the risk profile of the Group and ensures that an adequate systern of internal control 1s in place. Managemert
information: systems are in place to enakie the directors ta make nformed decisions to properly discharge trewr dutias,

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are separate. The Chairman is responsible for running the Board and he meets
ragularly and separatety with the Chief Executive and the Non Executive Directors 1o discuss matters for the Board.

As the business has developed, the compaosition of the Board has beer under constant review to ensyre that it rgmans
aporopriate 1o the managerial requirements of tre Group. One third of the directors retire annually in ratation in ascordance with
the Company's articles of association, This enabies the snarsholders to decide on the election of the Company's Soard.

The Board takes decisions regarding the appcintmeant of new directors as a whole and this is only done following a tharcugh
assessment of a potential candidate’s skills and suitability for the role. New directors are given a fult nduction to the Group where
raguirad so as to ensure that they can property fulfil :hair reie and meet ther responsibilities.

All directors are offered appropriate coachirg and training to develon thelr knowledge and ensure they remain up to date n
reievant matters for which they have respansiolity as a member of the Board.

The Chairmar's staterment and Chief Executive's review. included in this annual regort, give the Board's current assessment of the
Group’s prospects. The directors are responsibie for preparing the financial staternents s set out in the statemeant of directors’
responsiblities. Tne resconsibilites of the auditors are sat out in thew rgport.

Remuneration committee

Details concarning the composition and mestings of the Remuneration Carrmitice are contained in the diractors' remuneration
regort on pages 52 to 53,
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Audit committee

During the period. the Aucit Committes, which 1s chairad by Frark Neison an ‘ndependant Non Executive Director, nas met tres

times with tre extemal auditors being in aitendance on 3l occasiors. The Nan Exscutive Dirsctors meet separataty with the
audiors twice a year.

Tne sormrmittes has a -espansitility for reviewing the financial s-aterments provided to sharerolders. in aadiion the commities
raviews the business ard fnancial risks anc internal controls as descrbed below.

The cutes of the commtiee alss incluce ensuring that the auditors provice a cast gfiective service to the Group ard remain
Jbjectve and ndependent and to zonsidar from time to time the need for an internal audit function.

Relations with sharehoiders

The Compary has insttutional shareholders and s, where practicaole, willirg to enter nto a dialcgue with thern, The Chief Executive
and the Group Financial Diractor meet regularly witn inst.iutional investors within the confings of relevant legislation and guidance.

Tre Board -nvites communication from rs private Investors and encourages participation Ly them at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM). Al Board merrbers present at the AGM are available 1o answer questions from sharehoiders, Notice of the AGM ir excess

of 21 glear days s given ard the business of the masting is conducted with saparate resolutions, voted on initially oy a show of
hands and with the result of the voting teing clearly inaicated.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of mternal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, Such a system is cesignad
to mitigate the risk of falkure to achieve busingss objactivas and can orly provide reasonabie, Dut not absolule, assurance agarst
material misstaterment or ioss.

The Board is of the viaw that there is an orgoing process for identfying, evaluating and managing the Group's significant risks
and that i nas been in place for the peniod ended 31 March 2017 and up (o the date of approval of the arnual repert and
accounts, and that it is reguiarly reviewed by the Board.

The nternal control pracedures are delegated to Executive Dirgctors and senior management in the Groud, operating within a

clearly defined departmentai structure. The Board regutarly reviews the interral control proceduras ir the lignt of the ongeing
assessment of the Group's sigrificant risks.

On & monthly asis, nanagement accounts, Including a comprehensive cash flow forecast, are reviewed by the Board in arder

to provide effective monitoring of finarcial performance. At the same tme the Board corsiders other significan: st-ategic,
orgamsatonal and campliance 13suss to ensure that the Groun's assets are safeguarded and financiai iformaticn and accounting
records can be relied upon. The Board farmally menitors montbly progress on each development,
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Statement from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

This sectior sats out the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which will apply from the date of the next Annual Genera' Meeating to be
held or 13 July 2017. The poacy 1s determined oy tne Remuneraticn Commuttee of the Group.

Key principles

Tre rman am of the Group's policy 1s to align the interests of Zxacutive Directors with the Groug's growth strategy and ‘ong term
creation of spareholder value, The policy s designed to remunerate the Executive Jirectors competitively and aperopriately and
allows them tc shae i1 this success and the value delivered to sharenolders.

The policy 13 based on the following grirciples:

Promoete sharehoider value creation and support ine business growth strategy

Ensure that the Intarests of the diractors are aligned witn the long term intarests of skarsholders

Jaliver a corrpatitive leval of pay for the directars sufficient to attract, retain and motivate naividuals

Ensure that an appropriate proportion of tre package is determingd by targets linked to the Group's serformance

Executive Directors' Remuneration Policy

Purpose and link

Component to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance meaaures
Base salary Faed remuneration to Salaries are reviewead No ovarall maximum has Not apnficable.

prowde a compeatitve bass  annually taking into account  been set under the policy.

salary for the market in Group performance, role, However salary noreases

which the Group operates  experience and current arg reviewad in the contaxt

o attract, motivate and market rates. of the wider warkforce

retan directors with the

increases.
experience and capabilities
required 10 achieve the
Group's slrategic aims.
Bengfits To provide a market Fxacutive Directors receive  Set at a level which Mot applicable,
competitive benef ts benefis in ling with market  the Cammitiee deems
package as part of total practice, princpatly life appropnate.
remunaration. assurance, private medical
insurance and a Company
car/car allowance.
Pons.cn To provde ar appropriate Executve Dirgctors are MPension contributions are  Not apgelicable,
level of retrement berelt.  eligible to parucipate mn the  set at 10 per cent of Lase
Group's defired centribution salary and are paid v
pension plan. addition 10 base salary.
Share ncentvy Tgincrease empioyes —xgcutve Directors ara Executive Directors can Not subject to gerformance
Plan (5IF cwnarship o snares anitled to parliopate In a lax invest an arnount per year  measures, in fine with
quaktying all employee SIP. and recave a matching HMRC guidance.

awary from the Comparny
a3 parmittad by tho UK fax
legistation, Turther astarls
on the SIP s nciudad or
nage 94,
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Purpose and link

Componaent to strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Performance measuras

Annual bonus Rewards periormance

against annusl largets
which support the
strategic direction af the
Group.

The Company has adopted
a new bonus scheme,

Awards arc based on
annual performance.

Pay-out levels are
determined oy the
Commitice after the vear
end based on performance
against targets.

The Commuties has
diseretion to amend
the pay-out should any
formulasc output not
reflect the Committee’s
assessment of overall
business petformance.

Any bonus earned 15 paid
i cash.

The maximum annual
BONUS opportunity 1s
70 per cont of base salary.

Performance measures
arg get annuaily and
aligned with kay financial,
swrategic and/or personal
targets.

Currantly 103 der cart
of the bonus 15 based on
PBT petformance.

Stretching targets are
required for maximurm
Day-out.

LTIP To crive and raward the

achievement of longer
term cljectives, support
retention and promote
share ownership for
Executive Directors.

The Company has adopted
anew LIP.

Awards can be made over
condiional shares and/

of il cosl or nominal cast
share options.

Vesting will be subect

Ic the achievemert o°
specified performance
condiions over a perind of
thras years.

Awards rmay be subject
to malus provisions at
the discrotion of the
Committee.

The normal maximum
LTIP opportunity s

100 par cent of salary in
respect of a inancia' year.

Under the LTIP rules,

an awara of up o

200 per cent of salary
may be granted in respect
of & financial year but

only in very exceptonal
CIGUMSiancas.

Relevart performarce
measuras ara sei thar
refiect underlying business
performnance

For awards grantec

in 2017, the vesuing of
awards will be subjec: to
three year cumuiative EPS
targets.

Stretching targets are
required for maximum
pay-out.
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Explanation of performance measures chosen

Performance measures are selected that are aigred with the performarce of the Group and the interest of shareholders.
Stretching performance targets ars set each year for the annual borus and long term incentive awards. When settung these
perfarmance 1arge's, the Committee wili take .n‘o accourt 2 number of different reference ooirts, which may include the Growp's

business plan and strategy anc economic environmant. Full vesting will only occur for what the Committee considers t¢ be
stratoching performarce.

The arnual bonus s based on PR performance wnich .s a key financial oarfor mance metic of the Group.

The LTIF is tased on EPS performance as the Committee cons.ders this to be a key measure of long term sustairable business
perfarmance.

“he Committes retains the ability to adiust or set different performance measures if events ocour which cause the Commitiee to
determine that the measures are e longer appropriate and trat amendment is requirad so that they can achieve their ongiral purpose.

Awards and options may be adjusted 1n the event of a variation of share capital in accordance with the rules of the LT,
Lagacy remunsration

The Committee has tre rignt to settle remuneraton arrargaments that were put in place prior to this Sclicy being created.
These baing:

+ The bonus schemre applicable to Execut ve Directors from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2017 wolved a proportion of the bonus
caried in the year {up 10 5C per cent) baing deferred and paia out to each director ir equai :nsialments over the next three
years, subject to a minimur lavel of profit being achiaved i these years. Therefore, supject to the minimum level of profit being
achieved in the finarcial years o March 2018 March 2048 and March 2020, deferred benus payments will be paid in ling with
the rules of this scherne. The amount carried forward under this scheme tor each director is included on page 58.

During 2006 the Compary set up a Deferred Payment Share Purchase Plan (DPSPP) for the benefit of select employees. Further

details are given in 1¢te *8 1o tre financial statements. The Remuneration Committee rs responsible for approving any offers of
sharas made under the TFSPP although further grants are very unlikely.

Approvad and unapproved share options nave ceen granted to Executive D rectors in prenous years under the Telford momes
Plc Employse Share Cptior Scheme. Cutstanding optiors aetailed on page 58 can still be exercised under the rules of the
scrnema.

Non Executive Directors’ remuneration policy

The -amuneraticn policy for the Non Executive Diractors is to pay fees necessary to attract an ndividual of Ihe calibre required
takirg irto consideration e size and corrpliexity ¢f the business and the time commitment of the role.

Details are set out n the latie pelow:

Approach to setting fees Basis of fes Qther items
The fees of the Non Executive Dircctors  Fees may include a basic fee and Nor Cxecutive Diroctors do not reccoive any
ara agreed by the Crarman anct GFQ. additonal fees for ‘urther responsioilites

pengfits ¢r pension corthbutens. They are
{for example Charmar of tre Remuneration entitied ‘o participate n tre SIP.

Faes are reviewed annually. ana Audic Committee).

Travel and ctrer -sasonaole expenses incurred
Faes are set taking into account “pps arc pad in gash. in the course of perfcrming their dutes are
tre zuel of responsolity, ratevart

reimbur sed.
experence ang spesalist knowledues

Gt eacr dor Txec .t ve Direcar

Servige contracts
The Sxscutve O

faglars have service contacts tnat can ce termiratad or (2 mantts rotoe TRese orowvae for mrmirakon
Oayrants cquvalert to T2 e1nntr 3 base 2aig) ¢ AN SONrACch, & Danents,

Tha Non Fxacutun Diraciors hase et sl apgointne st mal o os terrealad o e mortes notog,
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Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The Committee considers shareholder feedback received on remuneraton matters, including issues raised at the AGM as well as
any additional comments recaived during any other meetings with shargholders.

Annual report on Remuneration
Remuneration

The directors’ amoluments for the year erded 31 Marcn 2017 are as follows:

Salary Bonus Total Total
Name & fees earnad Banefits Pension 2q17 2016
Executive Directors
Andrew Wiseman' 113 250 113.250 18,445 11.325 256,270 321,219
Jonathan Di Stefano 372,500 218,71 3,394 32,250 504,855 831,833
David Campbell 231,750 238,711 12214 23,175 486,450 449,429
David Durant? 149,062 152,400 2,159 14,908 328 530 368,282
John Fitzgerald 231,750 218741 23,80 23175 497437 454,025
James Furtongs 55,137 56,750 20,726 - 1372.913 174,309
Katle Rogers® 121,145 218,711 11,251 22,367 373474 445,540
Non Executive Directors
Zane Earl® 55,500 - - - 55,500 8,167
Frank Nelson 56,250 - - - &6 250 52,750
Dawvid “oland® 21,666 - - - 21666 82,750

1,358,310 1,197,244 130,580 127,201 2,813,345 2,869,707

CAngrew MSmar fgauced working Rours or 1 July 3016 1 Lap win reouged espunsdid 1es
2 David ueas ag

8 W07 g oars O 1 Januany 2005 0 bee wel meuuel responshiles

2 alies Furhutg educsd wirking Cours Tom ! Lardary 2PBan Yine ario reducerd respasistbilis
A RGhe T ours Lonnnnest A ey Gave on o Sand 3018 4G rat el o wors o L Janusty 2007
o dane car was apocoirted 7s Mo Exanutve Srsslor nly Seneary 2016

12y 3 AT resigog F N ssacut ve iesaton an 44 ady 7006
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Notes to the table
Base salarigs

The base salaries are reviewed on 1 January each year for the Exgcutive Directors. The base salary which appties frem 1 January
2077 1s 52t out below.

Name

2017
Andrew \Wiserran 103.000
Jonatran Di-Stefano 330000
Cavid Campobel 237,000
Dawvd Durant 152,400
John Fitzgerald 237,000
James Furiong 58,750
Katie Rcgers 237,600

Annual bonus

The bonus sarnec in the year was n r@lation to the Bonus schame applicable from 1 April 2013 10 31 March 2037, Under this
aorus schema, each Executive Director was antitled to earn an annual bonus egquivalent to 0.6 per cent of profit before tax
subject o & rrnimum level of profits baing achieved in each year and capped at 100 per cent of salary &t the date the benus 's
payable. Up 1o 50 per cent of the bonus earned In each year & deferred and paid out te each director n equal nstaiments over
the rex: three years, again subjsect to a minimum level of profit being achieved m these years.

The bonus scheme account for @acn directer s sat out below:

Executive bonus Earned for Amount paid Executive bonus

brought forward the year during the year carried forward

Andrew Wisaman 139,43 113,250 {136,080 116,583
Jonanan Tr-Stefang 174,813 218,714 (188,440} 205,084
David Zampbell 174,813 218,71t (188,440) 206,084
Dawd Curant 155,758 152,4C0 {148.337) 159,221
John Fitzgerald 174 813 218,711 {188,440) 205.084
James TJr'ang 20,417 58.750 {71,333} 5834
Katie Rogers 174,813 218,717 188,440) 205,084
1,014,850 1,197,244 {1,110,110) 1,101,984

Thes bonus schame has now been replacad with the new bonus scheme set out in the Executive Directors’ Remuneration

Paoicy on pages 53 tc 54. Tre bonus carned forward wil be released ana paid aver the next thrae years in ine with the
schems rues.

Benefits

The taxable panafits for the Executve Directors i e year included a car allcwance o Compary car and orjvate medical -nsurance.

Jon Ji-Stefanc arc Lohn Hitzgerald's benefits also inciude miargst relating to a 'oan anising om the DPSPP sciheme. turtner detalls
on this share scharme are grven 1 ncte 18,
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Directors’ interests in shares and share options

Diractors’ interests in shares are disclosed in the report of the directors.

The shara options beld by the directors i the Telford Homes Flo Emptoyse Share Option Scheme at 31 March 2017 and the
movements during the year then ended were as follows:

31 March Exercised 31 March

Caompany 2018 in year 2017 Exercise

scherme Number Number Number price Dates exercisable
Jonatnan Di-Stefano unapproved 60,0C0 - 50,000 75p 1 Oct 2005 to 1 Oct 2018

urapproved 100.000 - 100,000 90.50 9 Tap 2015 t0 9 Feb 2022

approved 33,000 (33,000 - 90.5p 9 Feh 2075 1o 9 Feb 2022
David Campbeil unapproved 87,000 - 67,000 90.5p 8 Feb 2015 to 9 Feb 2022

approvad 33.000 - 33,000 90.5p 9 Meb 2015 o 9 Feb 2022
John Fitzgerald aporaved 33,000 - 33,000 90.5p 9 Feb 2015 to 9 Feb 2022
Katie Rogers unapproved 100,000 {100,000} - 79p 23 May 2014 to 23 May 2021

On 10 June 2016 Jonathan Di-Stefano exercised 33,000 approved share options. The market price on this date was 356.75p.
Cn 28 June 2076 Katie Rogers axercised 100,000 unappraved share oplions. The market price on this date was 268.75p.

No share options were granted to directors or forteited by directors in the year ended 31 March 2037 or the year ended
31 March 2016.

In total the share-based payments charge in respact of directors’ share optians was £nil 2016: £nil),

Composition of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the independent Non Executive Dirsctors, being Jane Earl and Frank Nalsor. The
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on Executive Directorg' service agreements and remuneration. In doing so
it has undertaken relevant research to ensure that remuneration levels are competitive with the industry average. Gererally
the Committee meet three times during the year, however in the currert year the Committee has met five times ta enable ful
sonsideratior to be given to the decisions required regarding the new bonus structure anc LTIR,

The Charman, Chief Executive Officer and Group Financial Director attend meetngs and provide information ang supaort as
reguesied. They are not present when their remuneration package is corsiderad,
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Advisors

Dunng the year, the Caommittee recenved advice fror Deloitte LLP, The Cammittee s satisfied that the advice received is
ndapendent and ctjective.

Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the tinancial year commencing 1 April 2017

Infermation on how the Company intends to implement the Directors’ Remuneraticn Policy ‘or the financial year commencing
on ¥ April 2077 is set out below:

Salaries/feas

Salaries for the Executive Directors anc fees “or the Non Exacutive Directors wil ba reviewed in January 2018 and will e
disclosed in the Remuneration raport next year, aithough the Committee does not anticipate making salary increases greater
than the awards being made 1o the wider workfarce. The provisian of benefits will rermain unchanged.

Annual bonus

The new bonus scheme set out in the Remuneraton Folicy table will be impleranted from 1 Agril 2017, "he maximum bonus
opportunity far Executive Directors will be 70 per cent of base salary subject to achieving stretched PBT targets.

T achieve maximum pay-Qut, repcrtad PBT s required to exceed target PET performance by at least 10 per cent. ff reported
PBT is more than 20 per cent under terget PBT performance, no arnual bonus is earred.

Bonus payrrents will be settled in cash.

Long Term Incentive Plan

Awards will be granted under the LTI= tollowng the 2017 Annual General Meeting, subject to shareholder approval of the LTIP,

Vesting of the awards will be subject to three year curmulative =PS targets. The maximum award under this scheme is 100 per
cent of base salary.

To achieve maxmum vesting, cumulative EPS over three years is required to exceed target EPS performance by at least
10 per cent. if cumulative EPS is more than five per cert telow EPS target performance, no LTIP awards vest.

Approval

This report was approved by the Board on 30 May 207 and sigred on its behalf by:

Jane Eart

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
30 May 2017
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2077,

Resuits and dividends

Telford Homes 1s 37 AlM tistedt public limited company incorporated and domicilied :n the United Kingdorr.
The pr.ncipal activity of the Group 13 that ¢f property development
Srofit after income tax for tre year ended 31 March 2017 was £27.5'8,0C0 (2018, £25,726,000).

The directors recommend a final dividend of 8.5 pence per ordinary shase which, together with the intenm dividend of 7.2 pence
paid on 6 January 2017, making a totai of *5.7 pence for the year (20186: 14.2 aence}.

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with Tactars ‘ikely to affect its future development and performance, are set outin

the Charman's statement and the Chief Exacutive’s review or: pages 6 and 7 and 14 to 21 and the management of risks ang
ureertainties affecting the Group are set cut on pages 30 to 32, The financial position of the Group. its cash flows and torrowing
facilities are describec i the financia: review on pages 22 to 29. In addition note 22 to the fnanciat statements ircludes detaits of
the Groug’s financial nstruments and its exposure to cradit risk and liguidity nsk.

The directors have assessed e Group's projecied business activities and avalfabte finarcial resodrces togsther with detaled

forecasts for cash ficw and relevant sensitiity analysis, The directors believe that the Group is well placed to manags its business
risks sucaessiully.

After making appropriate enquines, the directors have a reasonabie expactation trat the Company and the Group have adeguate
rasources to cantinue n agerational axwstence ‘or the “oreseeable future. Accordingly the directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Substantial shareholdings

Based on sharenclder analysis as at 15 May 2017 anc as far as the Campany s awara the following represents interesis in excess
of three per centin it8 ordinary share capital:

Number of
shares hald Percentage
Hargreaves Lansdown (Stackbrokers) 5429418 721%
Barclayshare Nominees Ltd 4,536 543 5 02%
TD Direct Investing Nominegas (. urope) Lid 4 392,195 533%
Schroders — Cazenove Capital Management Ltd 3,095,825 A11%
Liontrust Investment Partrers LLP 2,983,112 3.97%

Tetford Homes Trustees Lid holds 2,128,563 shares (2.82 ger cent) and ncluges snares held on beralfl of employees under tre
Share Incentive Plar (note 18).
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Directors

Details of the directers of the Company are snown on pagss 48 to 43,

Jon Ci-Stefang, Frank Nelson ard Katie Rogers rotirs by rotation at the next Annual General Meet.ng and, baing algibie, cter
themselves for -g-election.

Directors’ interests

Tne diractors of the Company are .istad below together witn their interest i the shares of the Company at 31 March 207
and moverrans i the year:

At Market At

31 March Share acquisitions 31 March
2016 Incentive Plan and disposals 2017
Number Number Number

2,325,433 3,494

Number
- 2,328,927
370,161 3490 33,000 406,651

42,988 1,381

Andrew Wiserman
Jonathan Oi-Stefana

Davic: Campbelt

- 44,3649
Sav d Durant

1292357 3.484 (146,850) 1,148,201

ohn Fitzgerald 109,758 20778

- 12,53
Jamas Furlong

1,256,789 3.494 (207,582 1,082,701

Kane Rogers 81,447 2,781 45,000 128,228

Jane Earl - 1,048 - 1,048

Frank Nelson 28,365 1,098 - 29,463
These interests include shares purchased under the Talford Homes Share Incentive Plan (SIP) whicn all employees, incluairg

directors, are ghigible to participate in. All snares purchased under the SIP are matched by shares provided by the Company on a

one for one basis, These 'matching’ shares ars alsa included in the interests stated but must remain in the SIF for a perod of not
less than three years otherwise they are forfeited. Further detads on the SIP are ncluded in note 1§ to the financial staterrents.

Details of share cotions heid by directors are given in the directors' ramunaraticn report on page £8.

Ordinary shares

Tne Company issusd 443,000 new ordinary snares during the year, 193,000 in respect of share oplions beirg sxercised and
a furtrer 250,000 to satisfy the requirernents of the Share incertive Plan, Further information 1s disclosed i notg 18,

ne Company s investment in own snargs rolates sclaly to the Share Incentive Plan and further details of the tatal holding and
movernerts In the holding are d'sclosed 'n note 18.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Employees

The Group places considerable value on the involverment of its employees and keeps them informed of all relevant mattars on a
regular basis. Telford Homes s an equal opportunities employer and all applications far empioyment are censidered fully on the basis

of suitability tor the job.
Charitable donations

The Group made charitabie donations of £73,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016. £57,000). These donations were made
10 a number of diffarent charities supporting a broad range of good causes.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Maeting will be held at the registersd office at Telford House, Queensgate, Britannia Road, Waltham Cross,
Hartfordshire an 13 July 2017 at 12.3Cpm.

Auditors

A resaiution © re-appoint PrcewaternouseCoopers LLP as auditors o the Company will be proposed at the Annuat General
Megting in accordance with section 489 of the Companias Act 2006.

Each of the diractors at the time this report was approved has confirmed the following:

= 50 far as eack girector 1s aware, there is no relevant audit nformation of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and

= each director has taken steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that .nformation.

By order of the Bo

ichard Ellis
Company Secretary
30 May 2017
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

inciuding proportional share of joint venture resuits
31 March 2017

Non-GAAP Non-GAAP

Year eanded Year ended

31 March 2017 31 Margh 2016

£000 £000

Revenue 291,921 245,581
Cost of saes (228,72Q) (182,438)
Gross profit 63,201 63,143
Administraive expenses {20,805) 16,250}
Selling expenses {5,091 {8,360}
Oparating profit 37,308 34,528
Finance income 180 153
Finance costs {3,337 12,478
Profit before income tax 34,128 32,203
Income tax expense (6,609) 6.477)
Profit after income tax 27,519 25,726

Key management information is presented to the Board with the Group's share of joirt venture results proportionally cansolidated
ard therefora including the relevant share of the rasults of joint ventures in each ine of the income statement and balance sheet.
The Group's joint ventures are an integral part of the business and as such the Board believes that the financial results presented
n this way are the most appropnate for assessing the true underlying performance of the ousiness. A reconciliation between

key management information and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) compliant information, accounting for joint

ventures under IFRS 11 as equity investments, 1s inciuded in rote 2 of the financial statements.
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

including proportional share of joint venture results

31 March 2017

Non-GAAP Non-GAAP
31 March 2017 31 March 201§
£000 £0CQ
Nan-current assets
Goodwill 813 383
Proparty, plant ang equipment 1,272 1,485
“rade and other receivables 100 -
Defer-ed iIncome tax asse's - 230
2190 2,098
CGurrent assets
lrwentanes 339,380 28581
Trade and other receivables 42,893 31382
Gash and cash equivalents 39,334 20 B3GR
422107 337328
Total assets 424,297 339,926
Non-current liabilities
T-ade and other payaoies nod? 1,358)
Financial habities 1.co8 861
De‘errad income tax liabilities {194) -
2.87) 2,019
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 198,878} {109,363
Borrowings 54,085) 38,182}
Financial fiabilines - {194)
Current ingomre tax liaoities (3,232 3,108)
217.195) (150,837}
Total Habilities (220,012} (152,956)
Net assets 204,285 186,970
Capital and reserves
issued share capital 720 /435
Shara premium 107,385 W0E.A23
Retained sarmirgs 50 361 3082
Total equity 204,285 186,970
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2017
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

31 March 2017

Year ended Year anded
31 March 2017 31 March 2018
Note £000 £000
Total revenus * 291,921 245,581
Less share of revenue fram oint ventures (25,948) {2,.902)
Group revenue 1 265,975 242 679
Cost of sales (208,966 (180,869)
Gross profit 57,009 61,810
Adrmimistrative expensses {20.777) (19.0585)
Seiting expenses (#.143) 8177
Share of results of joint ventures 9 4,634 965
Operating prafit 1 36,773 34,542
Finance income 4 90 i
Finance costs (2,237 (2,344)
Profit before income tax 34,632 32,215
income tax expense 5 (7,113) {5.589)
Profit after income tax 27,519 25,726
Earnings per share:
Basic 7 36.30 39.3p
Diluted 7 36.60 38.9¢
All activities are in respect of continuing operaticns.
31 March 2017
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 £000
Movermant i darnwvativa firarcial nsraments necgad (Pa1) (466!
Moverment in delasred tax on devate inancial 1eiumients bedyed e 93
Other comprehansive expense net of tax (items that maybe subsequently {204) (313
reclassifiad into profit or loss)
Profit for the year 27,519 25,726
Total comprehensive income for the year 21,315 25,353
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31 March 2017
Group Company
3t March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Non current assets
Goodwil 2 226 304 - -
Investmenrs - - 23 037 9,464
Irvestmen:s 10 joint ventures 47554 4210 1 1
Property plant and equipment 10 1,272 1,435 1.272 1.485
Trade and other recevaidles 150 - 108 -
Deferred ncome tax assets 1 - 130 - 492
15,215 44,080 24,410 21,442
Current assets
inventones 12 287652 238.976 266851 232,868
Trade and other racevables 13 38.288 31.662 79.847 58.703
Cash and cash eguivalents 14 38,629 20,/09 36.882 20,620
364,069 291,347 383,580 312,191
Total assets 413,784 335,427 407,990 333,633
Non current liabilities
Trade and other payables hia3 (1320 {1,358} {1.277) (1108)
Firancial kabilries 2?2 11,096) 667) [1.096) B61)
Deferred incoma tax iabilities 11 323 - (110) -
{2 946) 019 [2.483) {1,769}
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 135 149,516} (1C4.871} 148,712 (103.830
Herrowings 16 153,805) (38,182 153.805) 133,182)
financial iiabfines e 194 - 34
CurrenT sneame tax adhes (3,234 3,191) [3.043) (3.100y
{206 553) 1146,434) 1205 560) 145 307)
Total liabilities {209,499) (148,457) [208,043) {147,076)
Net assets 204,285 186,970 199,947 186,557
Capital and reserves
Issued share capital vy 7.379 7.435 7579 7435
Shars premiurm 107 320 106,423 107 382 106.425
Retawned earnings 32,361 7?3062 85023 72.649
Total equity 204,285 186,970 199,947 186,957
The Sompany made a crofit for the yagr of £23 582 305 2016, £22.775 J0CH
autror sed for issue oy the Board of drectors on 30 tMay 2017 ana sigred on =s beralf by
atie Ragers
Graoup Financia! Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

31 March 2017

Share Share Retained Total

capital pramium earnings equity

Group statement of changes in equity £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at t April 2015 6,025 58,551 55,812 120,388

=rofit for the year - - 25,725 26,726

Tetzl nther comprehersive expense - - 13731 343)

£XCeSs tax on share options - - {75) {75

Cividend om equity shares - - 18,443} (8,443

Proceeds of equity share issues 1,460 4/,872 - 48,332

Shalg-based payments - - 28 218

Purchase of owr shares - - a8} 598)

Sale of own shares - - 785 795
Balance at 31 March 2016 7,485 106,423 73,062 186,970
Profit for tha year - - 27,519 27.519
Total other comprehensive expense - - 204 (204
Exuess lax on share options - - ) )]
Dividend on equity shares - - (11.135; {11138}
Proceeds of equity share issues 44 972 - L8
Sharg-hased payments - - 255 255
Furchase of own shares - - 860 {860}
Sala of pwn sharas - - 72g 729
Balance at 31 March 2017 7,529 107,395 89,361 204,285
Share Share Retainad Total

capital premium earnings equity

Company statement of changes in equity £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 Aprii 2015 8,025 58,551 52,349 116,925
Profit for the year - - 28,716 28776
Total other cormprehensive expenss - - 373} (373)
Excess tax on share options - - 75 (75)
Dividend ¢n souity shares - - i5,443) (8,443
Proceeds of equity share issues 1,480 47372 - 49,332
Share-based payments - - ?'q 218
Surchasy of own shares - - (DU {598
Sate of own shares - - 795 795
Balance at 31 March 2016 7,485 106,423 72,649 186,557
Profit for the year - - 23,284 23,594
Total otner comprehansive expense - - 204, (204}
Excess ax o7 stare optons - - i) )}
frndend on equsty sna‘es - - 1113535 (17 1385)
Prageeds of aqu ty share 155128 44 a7 - 1GIR
Sharg-hased payments - - 255 255
Purchase of owr sares - - 3R AR
Saie of own shares - - vy 9
Balance at 31 March 2017 7.529 107,395 85,023 199,947
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31 March 2017
droup Company
Year anded Year ended Year ended Yaar anded
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
£000 £000 €000 £000

Cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit 36,773 34 542 31,927 33295
Jepreciation 399 670 599 810
Share-basad payments 255 218 254 218
Proft on sale of rangible assets 200 ta4) (20x 4
fIncreasg) decraase ir inventaries and work Ir prograss 146.525) 17.814 (21,832 22,4C6
Increass in recavables 16,726} [19.968} 21,244} {44,846)
lngreass in payables 44,953 11,498 48,190 3,380
Share 4f rosuits from oint ventures 4,834 gah; - -

24 675 43.805 24,875 19,919

Interest pa d and debt .ssus costs {3.898) 4,017} 13.888 4.017)
Incoma tax pad B35y (5,468 65,415) 5,243}
Dividend received from subsidiaries - - 800 1,770
Cash fiow from operating activities 14,266 34,320 15,362 12,429
Cash flow from investing activities

Distribot or from joint ventures 12,045 5750 - 2,437
Irvestmen: i joint ventures 19.308) (75,538} (17 -
Purchase of tangibie assets 1387} {1,067} 1387 (1,067}
Praceads from sale of tangiole assets 20 44 20 a4
Consideration pard *or busitess combination 13,558 (18.562) {3.566) 18,562)
Interest raceved [0 wr 90 117
Cash tiow from investing activities 1,096) (39,356) {3,850) {17,031)
Cash flow from financing activities

Frocends from ssuarce of ordinary sbare captal 1,018 44,332 1,346 43,357
Purchase cf cwn shares BE0) [HG8) (3601 {598
Sale af pwn shares 729 739h 729 785
Incredse n bank lcans 15,000 - 13,000 -
Repayment of vank curg - 155,00 - 155,700}
2 Qung pasa 117 135) 13443 171355 8 443)
Cash fiow from financing activities 4,750 {13,914) 4,750 (13,914)
MNetincrease idecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,920 (18,8950) 16,262 {18,5186)
CAsk ane sash aqueeamets b ez o 20770 HORRG 20820 KRNI
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 39,629 20,709 o 36,882 20,620
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XN

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

31 March 2017

Basis of preparation
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0On “he calance sneet, the Group reports the net contract
positon ‘or sach cortract etnar as ar asset or dabiity. A
cotract reprasents an asset where cos's meurrec plus
recogrisaed proits exceed progress biling and a contract
reoresents a liakility wherg the opposite is the case. These
are disclosed as Amownts recaveracie on contracts’

Sale of freehold assets

Revenue ard profit are recognised at the point of legal
compietion of each freehcld asset sale.

Grant income

Gran's recewved ars recogrised as reverwe in the income

statement to match with the related costs that they are intended
tc compensate.

Selling expenses

Seliing expenses ara charged o the income statement as
neurred.

Employee benefits

Ir accordance with 1AS 19, employee benefits are recagnised
as an expense in the pericd they are sarned by the ermoloyee.
Under the Group's annuat bonus scheme 7or Executive
Direcors and senior management there is a deferred element
to be paig in future years, This ceferred elemenit 15 recognised
as an exoense over the remaining perod dependant on the
employee's continued service,

Borrowings

Interest nsanng bank loars and overdraf-s are initially measured
at tar value, being proceeds received net of transaction costs
and are subsequently measwed at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate methcd.

Bonowrg £0sts dirgetly refating to the develonoment of
properties that take a substantal period of ime to get ready

for sale are capitalised witnun ‘nventores, Capitalisaion of
borrowing costs commrences from the date of nitial expenditure

on a given Jevelopment and cortinues untl the prooerties are
ready for sale.

Tha capitalisation of porrowing costs 8 susperdad whare thare
sre prolonged periods when developmenrt activity or 2 gite s
interrupted. Capitahsator s not normally suspended aunng

a period when substartial tecknical anc administrative work

5 nang carrec out.

All other Dorrowng costs arg charged o the msome
siatament using e ef'ecTive nterest method Borrowing
nosts pac are classfiec as ooeraing agraties 10 the cas- flow
statement.

Exceptional items

arzatora 1ems are 1o

WA RS ST e

sacaraiey Bisclosed 0w artue ZF e g m o rcids e D Srans

At nderstanairg 3 e

o hrans 3l neenrTante

75

Hedge accounting - interest rate swaps

The Group has adopted nedge accounting for 1s interest

rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges. The redge s
used to mitigate financial exposure 10 moverments .n interast
rates, Changes in Intrinsic “air value are recognised in other
comprehensive income 1o the extert that the cash flow redge
is determined ‘o be effective. All other changes in far value are
racogrised 'mmediately m the ncorme statament. The hedged
itern 15 tne London interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) elerment of
a variable rate bark 1oan. The accumulated qains and 1osses
erevicusly recognised i other comoprehensive incomsa are
clagsifiec nto the mcome statement as a financ-al expense
over the life of the loan. Thes has the ef*ect of hxing the LIBOR
elermert of the interest rate recognised in the rgorme staterment
to the hedge rate over the life of the swa, The efectivensss
of the hadge is tested prospectively ard ratrosoectively on an
annual basis.

Operating leases

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement
on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

Pension costs

Contributions paid to group petsonal pension scnemes (defined
contriputiar), n respect of employees, are charged 1o the
income stater-ent as incurred.

Property, piant and equipment

Property, plart and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciaticn. Depreciation 15 provided on a
stiaight line bas:s at ratss calculated to wnite down the cost,
less estimated residual value, of each asset over its expacted
useful life as follows:

Leasehold mpraverrents - shorter of term of leass
and G years

Plant and machinery - 2 to b years

Motor vebicles -

Goodwili

Goodwill arsiny on the acauisiion 2f subsicianes rapresents
the excess of \1e consieranon ransferrea. Goodwil
impairmant renews are urdertgken annually or more

fraquently it auants or changes n crcumstances ndicate

a powenual imparrmer:. The carrving value of te cash-
generating unit (CGUY contaning the goadwill is comparad to
thie rgooverahle amount, ahicn g the mgher ofvalue an use

ard the far wakue, 1235 ¢osis of dispoesal. Any impeirment 1s
“acagnisec iImmediately as an exXpense and s Not subsecuently
reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2017
1 Operating profit

Year ended Year snded
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 £000
Operating profit is stated after charging (crediting):
Depreciation
- owned assets 599 30
Operating lease rentals
— property 475 377
- motor vehicles 6599 659
Prefit on sale of tangible assets (20 {44}
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2018
£000 £000
The following has been charged in respect of auditors' remunaeration:
Audit and related services (PricewaterhouseCaoopers LLP)
Statutory audit of the Company and Group financial statements a6 "7
“he audit of joint venture and subsidiary accounts pursuant to legistation 17 14
Other services including non-audit services (PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP}
Tax compliance services 34 40
Interm review 20 19
All ather non-audit services 14 120

Amounts pavabis 10 the Company's auditors and ther associates in respect of services Lo the Company, other than the aucit
of the Compary's financial staternerts, have not peen disciosed as the information s required :nstaad to be disclosed on a

consclicated basis.

in he year to March 2016, thare was £115,000 includac within non-audit services in relation to nor-recurring fees for financial due

diigerca ralatirg to the acquidition of the rageneration business of United Rouse Devalopments.

Grantincome

Thne Group was ailccated £0.4 mifion of grant from ire Mayo-'s Housing Govenant 2015-2018 programme, afl of whieh had
kieen receivec at 31 Marcn 2017 |2018: €nil). Grant income is recagrised as revenue (1 the noome statement on a percentage of
corplshion basis 1o maich with the costs t is -niended to compensate, Tre total grant altccaton s made up of ndividual site by
site allocatons. the rece pt of which I1s deperdent upon carstructing the planned affordable housing on sach site.



Revenue
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Our acccunting palicies far “evenue recognitian on 0pen Market sales. construction contracts and freehold assets are outlined on
g 9 o

pages 74 and 75. The revenue recogrised in the year was as follows:

Add share of

GAAP joint ventures Non-GAAP
Year ended March 2017 £000 £000 £000
Opsn market ravenue 158,880 - 158,380
Contract revenue 130,808 25728 126,626
Freehold sales 4,850 - 4,850
Other 1,347 218 1,565
Groun reverue 285 2973 25,943 291921
Shara of revenua from jo nt ventures 25,846 (25,846} -
Total revenue 291,921 - 291,921

Add share of

GAAP joint ventures Non-GAAP
Year ended March 2016 £000 £000 £000
Open market revenue 203472 - 203,1¢2
Contract revenue 37,804 1,387 29,292
Frachnld sales 270 1,380 1,850
Qther 1,336 31 LAGT
Group revenue 242679 2,902 245,581
Share of ravenue from joint ventures 2,902 2,902 -
Total revenue 245,581 - 245,581
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2017

2 Segmental reporting

T=e Group has only one reportabie segment oaing housebulaing n the Jnitec Kingdom. Financial analysis is presented to the
cef operating gecision maxers of tha Group, these being the Board of directors, on a site by site basis. [t s on this bas's that the
Beard make decisions as to the aliocation of resources and assesses the Group's performance. The information is aggragated
and grasented as one reportable segment given the sites share sirmilar sconomic character stics.

Management information is presented to the Board of directors weth the Group's share of joint verture “esuits proportionally
consclidated te reflect the true undenying performance of the Group and the importance cf joint ventures © the business. The
results discloseg within the Group's firancial staterrents do not propersignally consolidate joint venture resuits and instead they are

accounted for on an equily basis. A reconcilation betwesn management irformation and the GAAP compliant information in the
financiai staterants is as follows:

Remave

Management share of joint
information ventures GAAP
Year ended 31 March 2017 £000 £000 £000
Teverus 291,621 125,946) 266,975
Jost of saes (228,720) 19,754 (208,366
Gross profit 63,201 16.192) 57,009
Administrative expenses 120.805) /8 (20,727
Selling expenses (5.091) 948 @4,143)
Share of resuits of jont ventures - 4634 4,634
Operating profit 37,3058 1932 36,773
het finance costs (3141 tC36 12,141)
Profit befere income tax 34,128 504 34,632
Income tax expense {6,609} (204) 14,13}
Profit after income tax 27,519 - 27.519
Inventories 3392.380 51,728) 287632
Other assels aa.a17 41,218 126132
Tetal habilkties {220,012} 0013 {209,499}
Net assets 204,285 - 204,285

Remove

Management share of joint
information ventures GAAP
Yoar ended 31 March 2016 £000 £000 F000
Ravenue 245,581 12 902) 242.675
Cost of sales (182,438) 1,560 {180,860
Gross profit 63,143 (1,333; £61.8°0
Acmipistrative exgenses {19,250y 194 19 556)
Seliny expenses 153,382) 188 Fil”
Snharz of results of joint verturas - 265 Flere]
Operatng profit 34 k8 4 14542
Met Wi ne S0sty 2 3En U5 2ED™
Srafit natare noomn fAax 32203 12 EXREN 1)
Inear-a 1ax expenss 5477 RS Bk
Profit after income tax 25,726 - 25,728

“uEnt o en SRERST: ‘a

LArar 1nsats 1 a7 an

Toatar I i = Eeo2bh EREIY]

Net assets

186,970 -




3 Employee benefit expense
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The average monthiy nurber of peopie employea by the Group and Company, Ncluding Exacutive Directors, during the year

analysed by activity was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2047 31 March 2016
Number Number
Conatruction 106 104
Administration 132 15
238 219

The employment cests of all employees included above were:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 18,039 16,601
Social security costs 2720 1,810
Other pension costs — group personal pension arrangements M3 683
Share-based cayments (note 18) 254 218
21,156 19,317

The Company oparates a group personal pension scheme for its amployees. At 31 March 2017 payments of £88,718 were aue
to the scheme (2076: £94.411).

Six current directors are accruing benefits under group personal pension arrangerments (2318: Six).
Key management remuneration

Key management garsonnel, as gefined uncer IAS 24 [Related Party Disclosuras), have been identified as the directors as all
key decisions are reserved for the Board, along with the Campany Secretary/Director of Legal Serv-ces, who attends all Board
meetings. These figures include the full remuneration of key management personnel during the year.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000 £000

wagaes and salanes (rciuding bonuses) 2,909 3.259
Social security costs 384 421
Other pension custs 145 183
3,438 3,843

Inciuded within wages ard salaries during the vear ended 31 March 2017 are contrastual notice period and deferred bonus
payments totalling il payabe ‘or loss of ofice (2016 £356,000L

Detarled disclosares of directarg' imdividual remrunegration, pension entitlerment and skare options for those d rectars who served

N the year are given in the tables in the directcrs’ remuneration repert on pages 56 ¢ 59 and thersefore ars not repeated here but
form part of this note.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2017

4 Finance income and costs

Year anded Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 £000
Finance income
Interest mcome on short term bank ceposits 54 101
QOther .nterest income 36 16
20 7
Finance costs
Interest payabie an bark ioans and overarafits 11,608 (1,727
Amortisator of factity fees 823 {623)
(2.231) 2,344
Net finance costs (2.141) (2,227)

Further information on borrowings is given innote 22.
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5 Taxation
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 £000
United Kingdom corporation tax an profits for the year 8.616 6,55
Adjustment in respect of pror periogs 14 g
Total current taxation 5,630 65,558
Deterred taxation (note 11) 483 31
Income tax expanse 7113 6,580

in addition ta the amount charged te the income statement, deferred tax of £45,000 relating to share-based payments ard
finangial nstruments hedged has been charged directly to eguity ard £76,000 reiating to current tax have been credited directly
to equity (2016, £341,000 charged and £359,C00 credited).

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax assessed for the year is higher (2016 higher] than the theoretical amount that would arse using the tax rate appiicable to
profita of the consclidated entities. The differences are explained below:

Profit befare income 1ax

34,632 32310
Profit on ardinary activties before taxation at the rate of corporation tax 6,926 6,463
Effects of
Joint venturas results reported net of tax 247 22
Losses not racogrised 1 -
Adustment in respect of prior periods 14 8
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 36 113
Tax effect of share-baged payrments - [als)]
Fax relief on lard -wimediabon caosts 27 W
Adjustment to losses carried forward {74 -
Profits taxable at deferred tax rate (30) -
Income tax axpense 7,413 6,589

The applicabig ax rate was 20.0% (2C16; 20.0%).

Defarred tax expected to raverse in the yaar to 31 March 2018 »as geer measdred usirg the effectve rate thal will agoly n the
United Kingdom for the penod of 19% (2016: 20%,;.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2017
6 Dividend paid

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000 £000

Prior year fnal dividend paid in July 2016 of 770 fuly 2075 6.0p) 5,746 3,618
Interim dividerd paid in January 2017 of 7.20 (January 2016 6.50) 5.388 4,825
11,135 8,443

The finar dividend proposec for the year erded 31 March 2017 15 8.5 pence per ordinary share. This dividena was declares after
31 March 207 and as such the liabivty of £8,400 OCO has not beer racognised at that date.

7 Earnings per share

Basic earnirgs per share 1s caleulated by dividing the earnings attributable o ordinary sharsholders by the we.gnted average number
of ord nary shares outstanding dunrg e yeat, excluding those heid in the Share incentive Plan. ~or diluted earnings per share, the
weighted average rumbear of arcinary shares 1 issue s adjusten to assume conversion of all dilutive potertial ordinary shares.

Earnings per share havs been calculated usirg the following figures:

Year endad Year anded

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Watighted average number of shares in issue 74 716,939 65,495,340

Diuton ~ effect ot share schemes 395,643 372176

Diuted waighted average nurnber of shares i issue 5,112 882 66,070,516

Protit on ordinary achvities after taxation £27,519.000 £25,726,000
Earnings per share:

Basic 36.8p 39.3p

Chiuted 36.6p 3500

8 Goodwill

Group Company

£000 £000

Nat carrying amount at 1 &pril 2015 - -

Agditions tnrough business combination 304 -

Net carrving amourt at 31 Margh 2016 304 -

imoarrment of goadwilf 15) -

Net carrying amount at 31 March 2017 289 -

Ginoodwill arase during the year ended 31 March 2016 as a esult of the acquisiton of the regengrator pusiness of Uritea

Fouse Developments {UD). The total consideraton on acau-siticn was £13,562,C00 compared to the net assets acquired of
78,258,000 resuiting 1 guodwill of £3C4,000.

Imgainrert of gocewil of £15 060 2C16: £nil) 15 35 & resalt of a change i the ax rate anwnen deferred tax s recogrisec on the “ar
value of the net assets acguirec.
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9 Investments
Company
Investments in subsidiary undertakings

2017 2016
£000 £000
At 31 March valued at cost 23,037 19,484

O 30 June 2015, the Group acquired and took cortrol of the regeneration business of UHD from Unitec House Group Holdings
Lmited (UHGHL). The regeneration busiress of UHD consisted of a group of companies that had various interests in four
significant development cpportunities i North anc East London. Completion of one of the developments, helc by Gallions

Lirmited, was conciticnal or UHGPL securing a lsgal interast in the site. On 28 July 2018, those corditons were met and the
Group comgleted :ts acquisibon of Gallions Lumited.

There have been no other additions or disposals of investments in subsidiary undertakings during the year ended 31 March 2017

The significant urdertakings of the Group comprise:

Share of ordinary
capital held by Country of Accounting

the Group registration date Principal activity
Teliard Hormes (Creekside) Limited 100% Scotlang 3% March Froperty gevelopment
istand Gardens Limited 150% England 31 Decemnber Sroperty developmen:
Teltord Homes Segeneration Develooments 100% England 31 Maich Picperty developrent
Heldings Limited
Telforg Homes Salfron Towers Limited 100% England 31 Decerrber Property development
Teifore Homes Gity Narth Limited 100% Erglandg 31 March Property develooment
Telord Homes Christ Street Limitad 100% Erglang 31 December Property development
Chrisp Street Develooments Limited 100% Cngland 31 March Property development
Galkons Limited 100% Englard 31 March Propenty development

The directors have taken advantage of the exempiion availanle under Secticr 479A of the Companies Act Z006 relating 1o the
requirement for tne audit of individual accounts for the Group's subsidiary undertakings.

Investments in joint ventures

Qroup Campany
2017 216 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March valued at cost 47,554 42,101 1 1
Investments in joint ventures
Tha jaint venturas which pringinaliy affect profits and net assets of the Group comprise.
Share of ordinary
capital held by Country of Accounting
the Group registration date Principal activity
Crionbia Farm Noth LLE A0 Frgand 37 “darch Property developrent
S airanis Dovalopmants LR S Enearid 31 Danamper P-xparty devaloprrent

sk el lomes) doiteg KX

y 3 Erigglars TR wch Proparty

[s TR Te ot will]

Aqnada v Soute Deelopment 2 S50% =rgland 0 Nevermeer Eenart

y Casolopmonrt
Cailwong o le slop et Lt 2 S Znijlar - S MG e Frogery g elonmeer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2017

9 investments continued

On 28 Juty 2016, as a result of the completed acauisihen of Gallkons Limitad fre ULHGHL, the Group acguired ar interest in
the joint ventures Arrada 1 Sous Ceveioprment LLP and Gallions 28 Deve opment LLP. There tave Bean no otnar acditons

ar cisposals of investments ir joint ventures dunng the year ended 21 March 2C17.

A full fist of subs'diary undertak.ngs and joint ventures not disclosed within this note is Iccludsd on page 101

investments In joint vantures are accaunted for under e equity method. The francal information of the jomt vantures are
sumrear sed below and reconcled to the Group balance sheet.

Armada City North
1 South Gallions 2B Chobham St Leonards {Teltord
Development Development Farrn North Developments Homes)
LLP LLP LLP LLP Ltd Other Total
Yaar ended 31 March 2017 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue - - 43,494 84c 2,503 - 91,837
QOperating profit - - 9,865 &38 408 36 11,237
Firanca rcome (pxpense) - in 189 (2,179 4 (1,379
Profit fosst before tax - - 9.864 027 1.673) 40 9.258
Current assets 7,742 362 17186 5,397 58,279 38 118.054
Cash - - 5 - 20355 35C 2,410
Current labihties 5,580) - 4,017 {2 [17,746) {132)  (27471)
Arsounts due to members {2,782 352} 133.358) 4,055) - 4] 139.579)
Net assets - - 9,784 1,340 42 588 302 54,014
Remove jant ventue partners - - 4,892} BrOy 21,2941 (151 {20.007)
share of 1t assets
Ramove share of amours due 1,681 187 (6,598 2028 - 2 19,990
to int venture partners
icmaove pre-acacistion rascrves - - - 1,551 - 1,551
Consolidation adjustments 2,389 - 179 g 13 494 12) 1984)
Investments in joint ventures 3,470 181 21,719 2,682 19,351 151 47,554
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Bishaopagate Chobham StLeonards City North
Apartments  Mulatel Farm North Developments {Tolford
LLP LLP LLP LLFP Homes) Ltd Total
Year ended 31 March 2016 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 3,288 2,504 - 360 - 6.252
Ogerating arofit llosst 1858 523 79} 207 15C0) 2.009
Finance Income {Expense) 3 - - 106 1698 (1.59
Profit (loss) before tax 1 881 523 (79) 313 (2.199) 415G
Current assets ‘0D 63 52,082 2,603 403,685 55,539
Cash 37 244 8 - 8 295
Current iigbilines 1) {169) (7.325) { 487) {2.904)
Armounts due to members - 2 (42,842) 12,294 - (52.138)
Net assets fiabilitps) 126 136 {79} 313 40,206  AC702
Renove igint venture partners share of net assats 163 [333)] 4Q {157} (20,103} (20,361
Remove share of amecunts due to oint verture - 1 24,921 1147 - 26,068
partners
R|emove pre-doguistion resarves - - - - 1,661 1,551
Congolidation adjustrnents 1 (2 N 230 60720 (5,870
Investments in joint ventures 64 67 24,805 1,583 15,582 42,101

Thie financial informatior above for joint venturas 1s presented after having been aligned to the Group's accounting poicies.

After removing the share of joint venturas not owned by the Grouo and conselidation adjustments, the share of results cf joint
ventures figure included i the Group Income statement for the year ended 21 March 2017 is £4.634,000 (2016: £565,000)
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10 Property, plant and equipment

Leasechold Plant and Motor

improvements machinery vehicles Total
Group and Company £000 £000 £000 £000
Cast
Ar 1 Apri 2015 210 2,003 jsts 2.881
Additiens 33 574 - 1,067
Cisposals - 433; - (433}
At 31 March 20168 1,303 2,144 5151 3,515
Addirons 232 155 - 387
Disposals (7o) 43) 62 18t
At 31 March 2017 1,465 2,268 - 3,721
Depreciation
A Apng 2015 357 1,454 42 1,853
CGharge 12¢ 467 23 81C
Disposals - (433) - 433)
At 31 Maren 2016 477 1,488 B85 2.Ca30
Charge 170 427 2 599
Disposals 70 43) {67) {180
At 31 March 2017 577 1,872 - 2,449
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 826 656 3 14385
At 31 March 2017 aag J84 - 1,272

Authorised capital expenditure that was contracted, out rot provided for, in these financial statements amountaed 1o £314,000
i resation to leasehald iImerovements to nead office premises (2016; Enil),



11 Deferred income tax

Group and Company

Group

Company

89

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000
Deferrcd tax assets 585 550 219 348
Deterred tax hiabilities {918) (360 629) (E6}
Deferred tax (liabilities) assets {323) 180 (110) 492

As perrited oy [AS 12 fincome Taxes), certan defarrad tax assets and iaodies have been atfset as they anse in the same tax
jurisgicticn and are settled on a net basis.

The mcvement on the deferred Incame tax acceounts as folicws:

Group

Company

31 March 2017

£000

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

£0060 £000 £000
Brought forward 190 866 402 866
Cnarged to the income statement 483 3N 557 (33}
Charged directly to oguity 45) 1341) 145) (341
Recogn sed through guodwill 15 (304) - -
{323) 180 {110} 492
The moverrent in deferred tax assets and lapilities durirg the vear s as follows:
Share- Financlal Losses
Capital based instrument carried Fair value Copnsolidation
allowances payments transactions forward adjustments adjustments Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2015 46 743 77 - - - 366
{Charged) creditec to the 18y 15 - 2 - - i3n
noome statement
{Chaiged) credeed directly - (434} 23 - - - (341)
to eqoty
Recognised through goodwil! - - - - {304 - (304)
At 37 March 2016 28 294 170 2 (304 - 180
Credited (charged) 1o the 1 7 - 4 - 57 483;
mcorme statement
{Chargedd) credited diracty - 1823 37 - - - 5
to equity
Hecognised through goodwill - - - - 15 - 13
At 31 March 2017 39 214 207 76 (289) (570) {323)
Share- Financial Losses
Capital based instrument  carried Fair value Consolidation
allowances payments transactions forward adjustments adjustments Total
Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
A Apal 0135 4h 47 7 - - - 313131
Charged ke reame statermont [at=d] ] - - - - W3
iDnarged oragited directy - 434 2z - - - A1)
tor aeuity
A1 31 Marcy 209 204 0 N PEY
LG Chadgoa ot ' - -
i alotss staterment
Sl Lerdite] dren o - - -
ety
At 31 March 2017 39 214 207 - - (570) (110
T srmulatieg Dt Seforad Vs Sred T30 e 3et fo Tauty ag mrs L SR I 0y DAl o,
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12 Inventories

Group Company
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Development properties 287,652 238,976 266,851 232,868
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13 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000C £000 £000 £000

Current receivables

AMOUN: racuveratle oo contrauts g Tt} ST
fomments el by G GErtaar.ge - - g
TR Y R Ea ety
! 2 1A
Y ot T
T R e ERr Ve

38,288 31,662 79,847 58,703

Amounts recoverable on contracts

Al niract czees e of TN 308 300

TECT N A 003 cEnugnsad T e Tt i e s

OURERIYT G UGNTCTI N GE RGN A T 0010 e InesT T iates
Group Company

31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000

22,408 14,828 22,408 14,774

22,408 14,828 22,408 V4774




14 Cash and cash equivalents

o1

Group Company
31 March 2017 31 March 2010 31 March 2017 31 March 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 38,629 20,709 36,882 20,620
15 Trade and other payables
Group Company
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2047 31 March 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current payables
Trade payables 30,146 10,571 39,146 1,571
Arnounts due to jont ventures - 42 - 42
Amounts “ecoverable on contracts {note 13) 3272 7./90 3.272 7790
Deposits raceived in advance 62,059 70,277 §2.059 73,277
Social security and otner raxes 656 &840 656 840
Accrued cxpenses 17.4/6 15,551 16,672 14571
—and credtors 26,80/ - 26,907 -
149,516 104,371 148,712 103,831
Non-current
Cue in more than cne year and tess than five years
Accrued expensses 1,527 1,358 1,277 1,108
Total tirade and other payables 151,043 106,229 149,988 104,839

As at 31 March 2017, ceposits received in advancs including the Group s share of joint vartures amounted to £68,085 000

(2016. £70,277,000).

Landa creditors reprasent the farr value of land payments the Groug 15 committed 10 but are not yet payable. As at 31 March 2017
the total vaiue of land crediters including the Group's share of jomt ventures amounted to £28,420.000 (2C1¢. ).

16 Borrowings

Group Company
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans 55000 44,500 55,30C 4C.0C0
fransaction costs 119E5L 1813 REEL {*,5181
53,805 38,182 53,805 38,182

Fartran n'orraton an oo~ Qs s qan oot 22,
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17 Share capital

31 March 2017 31 March 2018
Group and Company E00C £000
Authorised
100,000,200 2016, 1C0.000.000) ordinary shargs of 10p sach 15,000 10,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
76,293,000 ordinary snares of 10p each (2016 74,850,600} 7529 7,435

Burning the year, 193,000 shares were issued at orices ranging from 64.2p to S0.5p as a result of share optons being exercised.

On 31 March 2017, 250,000 odinary shares were issued at 343.5p to Telford Homas Trustess Limited to satisfy the requirements
of the Share Inceriive Plan (note 18).

Ordinary shares may be issued in the future to satisty the exarcise of outstanding share options (note 18),
Details of own shares heid within employee banefit trusts are disclosed in note 18,

All shares rank equally In respect of shareholder r.ghts.

18 Employee Share Schemes
Telford Homes Plc Employee Share Option Scheme

A charge 1s made to the income statement to reflect the calculated fair value of employse share options. This charge 1s calculated
at the date of grant of the opticns and is charged equally over the vesting pericd.

Tne Group cperates both ar approved share cption scheme and an unapproved snare option scheme, Awards under each schame

ara made periadicaily 10 new employees. All schames are equity-setiled and options can normaily be exercised three years after the
grant data,

The Group has used the Black-Scholes-Mertor formula te caleulate the fair value of granted optons. Indivdual calculations have
beer performed for groups of share options with differing exercise prices and dates. The assurmptions applied to the Black-
Scho-cs-Merton formula lor share options issued and the fair value per ookon are set out below:

2017 20186
bExpected kfe of options based cn optcns exercised to date 4 years 4 years
Volatiity of share price based on three yeer share price history 38% 25%
Dradenc yeld 4.2% 4.0%
ik free irterest rate 0.25% 0.5%
Weghted average share prce at date of grant 317p 383p
Weighted average oxercise price 312p 383p
Weightod average fair value per aption £0.52 £0.47

=xpected volathty was getermincd by cansidenng the vclatiity evels histoncally for the Grouo. Volatlizy in mare racent years s
consdered "0 fave more r2levance than earlier yeass for tha taricd reviewed.

The charge caculaten for t-e yaar sncdad 31 Marcr 2017 s C45,000 12015 227000
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A recorciliaton of ophion movements during 2acn perod 1s snown oelow:

2017 2016
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
0003 exercise price 000s exercise price
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 972 1650 1,352 1040
Granted in the year 48 312p 183 3830
Forfeited in he year {26) 348p 20) 2470
Exercised w1 the year (193} 820 543} 34n
Outstanding at 31 March 801 188p 972 165p
Exercisable at 31 March 507 95p 689 9ip

The aggregate fair value of options granted in the year was £25,000 (2016 £86,0001

A total of 193,000 share options were exercised at a weighted average price of 82p in the year ended 31 Marcn 2017
{2016: 542,772 shares at 84n).

At 31 March 2047 autstanding options granted over 10p ordinary shares werg as follows:

Share option scheme

Option price Number Date exercisable

Group appraoved 640 81,500 20 July 2012 ic 20 July 2619
390.5p 108,000 9 Feb 2015 to 9 Feb 2022

200p 50,000 15 Mar 2016 ¢ 15 Mar 2023

284p 80,000 28 May 2017 to 28 May 2024

347p 17,790 28 Feb 2020 to 28 Feb 2027

383p 124,800 4 Dec 2013 to 4 Dec 2025

281.75p 30,846 15 Sep 2013 to 15 Sep 2028

Ciroun unapproved 750 B0,0AC 1 Oct 2005 10 1 Ocr 2073
T9p 60.000 23 May 2074 to 23 May 2621

90.5p 187,000 a9 Feb 2015 to 9 Feb 2022

383p 42,200 4 Dec 2038 to 4 Dec 2025
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18 Employee Share Schemes continued
Telford Homes Plc Share Incentive Plan

Durnng tre year erded 31 March 2004, "eford Homes P'e set up a Share Ingentve Slan (SIP} for the benefit ¢f all of the

emoloyees of tha Groug. T s SIP has been approved by the Inland Ravenue and corfers certain tax advantages for particinating
employees.

The SIP enapies ‘or employees o purchase shares up to a value of £1.800 ' each tax year. These snares are known as
‘Oartnersp shares'. Parership shares are matchec on a one for one basis by 'Matching shares' orowided by the Group,
subiect to the sharas remaining in the SIP for a period ot nat 'ess than three years. Dividends arc paid or both Partnersnig
and Matching shares and these ars allccated 10 employees as 'Divicenc snares’.

Tne Group has set ao a trust 1o administer the SIP and to hola shares on behalf of individual employees. This trust is an entirely
separate entity to e Group and is managec by a corporate trustes, Telford Homes Trustees Limited. The costs associated with
the trust are paid for by the Group and the Group finances all share ourchases.

The trust nas disirbuted sharss as Partnership shares and Dwvidend shares to employees particpating in the scheme. These
shares remain i the trust untl such ime as an employee witndraws from the SIR. Further shares have been allocated to
employees as Matching shares and the cost of these shares s beng written off over the thrae year halding period. The charge mn
the year ended 31 March 2C17 is ©217,00C (2016: £191.000).

Nunng the year endec 31 March 2017 the trust accuired 250,000 shares at 343.5p. At 31 March 2017 the trust remains nteres.ed
in 137,268 sha-es (2016: 140,335) which have not been allocated to employees and a further 218,94 {2018: 212.988) that have been
allocated to emgloyees as Matching sharas but have not yet vested. Shares in which the trust remains interestec do not rank for

dividends and all shares that havs not yet vested do not count in t7ie calculation of tre weighted average numibers of shares used ‘o
calculate earnings per share.

Shares held by the SIP are recogrised as a deduction from sharenoiders’ junds. The value of these shares at 31 March 2017 was
£777.997 [2016: £716.840). Movements in retained earrings relating to tre SiP are showr in the staternent of changes i equity.

Teiford Homes Plc 2006 Deferrad Payment Share Purchase Plan

Dunng the year enced 31 March 2007, Telfore Homes Flc set up a Deferred Payment Share Purchase Plan (DPSPP) for the

benafit of selectec senior ampleyeas. An amployae benefit rust {the Telford Homes Plc 2006 Employee Benefit Trust) was set up
with Abacus Corpoiate Trustse Limited aching as trustee.

Parucipants \n the DPSPP are offered 2 can by the trastee tc enacle them o subscrbe for a specified rumber o shares in the
Groug at market value. This loan is interest free, repayatle o or before the repayment date which s normalty 20 years from the
date ¢t the loan or on leauing emplayment or dispesing of ine shares. e loan has a limited recourse such that repayment I1s
timited 1G the value of thg sharas or the -epayment date. The Group wil lend the trustee sufficient funds to erable the trustae to
provide the loans to indidual participants, All shares acoured urder the DPSPP will be subtect to a three year vesting penoc and

are relc by the trustee for the benefit of the particparts, Otfers to participants will be made periodically 3t the discretian of the
directors of Telforg Homes Plc,

In Santerener 2002 seectad arTployees wars affered. ana sunscr bed for o mtal of 580.00C sharas at the market vaue of 260D,
Triese shames waers 'ssued o0 B Neveimper 2006, Or ths date e Graup eroviced & foan 1o the tusies of £1,430 20C 0 arable
the fustee to arovde 2 lcan to 2ach of the oartciparts. This lean -3 repayacie at the earker ¢f the sale of tha vestec snares arc
toverrger 2028 and nds teen reccgn sed as 4 dedusaon kom sharenclders' funds sn the siatemert of Changas 0 eguity. n the

yeal erdec 31 March 2017, £136 000 of thiglcan mas geen rapaid, feaviig an cuisianding salance of £623,0C0 205 €732 600)

-

R

Mal-
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19 Commitments and contingent liabilities
Cormmitments

At 31 March, the Group and Company Fad outstanding commitments for future mnimum lease payments under non-cancellabie
operating ieases which fall cue as follows:

Property leases Other leases
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
£000 2000 £000 £000
Within ore year 3 467 =84 554
Betweet: ane and five years 2,800 1,866 817 287
Over five years 3,807 266 - -
6,996 3,229 1,101 8441

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable oy the Company for its cffice premises and motor vehicles.

On 13 February 2017, the Group entered into a new 10 year sontract to lease its existing head office. In addition tc this, also on 13
February 2017, the Group entared nto a 10 year cortract 1o lease additional space at the same location as its easting head office.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent land payments

QOn 27 September 2013, the Company purchased s Horizons development in Tower Hamlets. The site was scguired for consideration
equating to a vanable percantage of the open market sales proceeds that are achieved from the future development. The total
payments are expected ta be approximately £23.9 millior (216 £24.2 millicr). Consideration of ©22.8 milion (2016: £4,0 milllion) has

been paic to date and the "emander will oe sattied directly from open market sales proceeds cr indmdual legal comglation of the
remaining two ynits,

On occasions the Group enters into contracts to purchase and subject to conditions being satisfied such as obtaining a planning

consent. At 31 March 2017 the Company had entered 'nto ne conditional contracts for which the conditions had not been fully
satisfied (2016; £22.7 million),
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20 Business combinations

On 30 June 2015, the Group acquired and ook ceontrol of the regeneration businass of United House Deveiopments (UHD) from
United House Group Holdings Limitea {UHGHL). The regareration business of UrD corsists of a group of companies mat have
various interests In four significant developrment opportunities in North and East Londan.

Cormpletion of one of tre develcpments, Gallions Quarter, was conditional on UHGHL securing a jegal interest n the site,
On 28 July 2016, thgse conditions were me? and the Groun completed s acquisit on of Gallions Limited, The cons deration
for the business combina* on on 28 July 2016 was £3.56 million.

Tne consideratior paid for the acquisition of Gallions Limited, the tair value of the assets acquired and liadilities assumed at ine
acquisition date, 1s gs follcws:

Consideration as at 28 July 2016 £000
Gash 3,556
Total consideration paid 3,556

Recogrisad amounts of -dentif.acle asse's acquired and liaollities assurmed which were consolidated as at 28 July 2016 were:

£000
Non current assets
Invastments in joint ventures 3,558
Total fair value of net assets 8,556

Acquisttion-related costs of £18,000 nave been charged to administrative expenses in the consoiidated income statement for the
year ended 31 March 2017 {2016: £383,0001

Aavenue and profit recognised since the date of acquisizion are minimal and not significant to the Group.
The {air value of Invertories acauired including the Group's share of j0int venture nventor'es was £3,556.000, The method for

detarmining the fair vaiue of inventory is to Lse the expected selling price less casts to compiete. costs of disposal and expected
margin for each development.
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21 Related party transactions

The Board ard certan members of senior management are related partias within the definhon of [AS 24 (Related Party Disciosuras).

Property purchases by directors of Teiford Hames Plc

ir June 2015, David Campbell excharged confracts on the nurehass of an apartment ‘rom the Company at its Bermondsey
works development. The purchase price was £351,625 and the Comgany has receivea a deposit of £70,325 at 31 March 2017
(2016: £35,183) wtn the balance due on legal completion.

Tne directors are of the opinion that this sals was made at the ocoen market orice. This purcnase was approved at the Annual
Ganeral Meeting held on 16 July 2015,

' August 2016, James Furlong exchanged cortracts and gompleted on e purchase of an apartment rom tho Corngany at
+3 development The Junction. The purchase price was £718.000 plus additional fees of £1,985 for changes from standarc
specification, which the Company hag received in “ull as at 31 March 2017,

The directors are of the apinion that this sale was made at the open market price. This purchase 1s 10 be approved at the Annual
Generaé Mesting hesd on 13 July 2017,

There have been no other transactions between key management cersonnel and the Group other than -emuneration in the year
ended 31 March 2017 or the year endea 31 Marct 2016.
Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures

The amounts outstanding from jaint ventures to tne Graup and Company for trading talances at 31 March 2017 wotalled
£8,012,000 {2C16: £2.485,600). A iotal of £23,52C,000 was owed to the Company at 31 March 2017 from joint ventures in respect
of sharehoider advances (2016; £25,872,000). 'he Company owed joint venturas £nit 3t 31 March 2017 (2016 £42,000).

Tne Campany has rvoiced joint venturas £35,148,000 in the year to 31 March 2017 for canstruction services {(2016:
£9,1/1,000). Tre Corpany was invoiced £l Dy joint vertures m the year to 31 March 2017 (2016 £nil).

Amcunts owed to jont ventures and balances between the Company and its suksidlaries are non-irterest bearrg and are
repayable when the counterparty bas sufiicient cash in repay the loans,
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries

Tansactons between the Company ard s subsicianies, which ara related parties, have been siminated or consolidation. The

amounts owed by subsidianes to the Compary at 31 March 2017 totalled £18,283,000 2016 £1,539,000) and the Compary cwed
subsid-anes £l (2018: Cnil).

Tre Company has invoiced subsiciaries £2,366,000 i the year ta 31 March 2017 for cerstruction services (2016: £1,942,000%,
The Combany has been nvciced Tniin the year to 31 March 2017 by subsidiznes (2016 £nill.

Jont ventures and subsidianes do not transact with each otner,
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22 Financial instruments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2017

22 Financial instruments continued

The maturity orofile of the anticipated future cash flows based on the earliest date on whieh the Group can be required to pay
financial fiabilities on an undiscounted basis (including fuiure interest payments usirg the latast applicabie rates) is as foliows:

Trade payables
and accrued Derivative
expenses Borrowings liabilities Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within one year 56,622 1925 - 58,547
More tnan ore year and less than two years 716 56,765 1,096 58,577
More thar wo years and less than five yoars 811 - - 811
31 March 2017 58,149 58,690 1,096 117,935
Trade payables
and accrued Derivative
expenses Borrowings liabilities Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within one year 26,122 1,544 194 27,860
Morg than one year and less than two years 542 1,544 - 2,086
More than two years ard less than five years 8156 41,415 6&1 42,892
31 March 2016 27,480 44,503 855 72,838

The maturity profile of the antcipated future cash flows based or the earlisst date on whicn the Company can be required to pay
financiai liabilities on an undiscounted basis (including future interest payments using the latest apolicaple rates) is as follows:

Trade payables

and accrued Derivative
enpenses Boarrowings liabilitias Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within ane yeaar 55.818 1925 - 07,743
More tnan one year and less than two years 716 5R,765 1,096 58,577
More than two years and less than five years 561 - - 561
31 March 2017 57,005 58,690 1,096 116,881

Trade payables

and accrued Derivative
axpenses Barrowings liabilities Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within ore year 25,052 1.544 194 26.820
More than cre vaar and less than two years 542 1544 - 2,086
Maore thar tavo vears and iess than five years 366 41,415 661 22642
31 March 2016 26,190 44,503 855 71,548




SIGNIFICANT UNDERTAKINGS

Tre subsid ary undertakings and jont ventures not disciosed n ote 9 whign the Company hoids a significant intsrast in at

31 March 2017 are set out below.
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Share of

ordinary

capital held

{direct/ Country of Accounting
indirect) registration date Principal activity
Beecrwood Fead Managemenrt Limited 100% England 30 Aprd Property managernant
Bearmondsey Werks Management | imited 10G% Erglanc 31 May  Property management
Broadway Chambers Maragemert [imited 100% =ngland 32 june  Property managemert
Cawders Wharf Management Lirited 100% Zgiand 3" December  Property managemert
Chrisp Strest Managernent Limted 100% England 28 rebruary  Property mansgerent
Caotall ana Stainaby Management Limited 100% England 3\ Decempber  Property fnanagemeant
Frampion Pa-k Managemeant Limited 100% Fngland 3C Septemper  Property management
Horizonsg Tower Limited 00% England 31 August  Froparty managemsnt
K Rasidents Limitad I00% England 30 Septamper  Preperty management
_Imeharbour Residents Limited 100% Ergland 28 Fepruary  Praperty management
Mannattan Plaza Management | imited 100% Englard 31 March  Property management
20) Management Limited 100% Englara 30 June  Property management
St Paul's Way CHP Management Liruted 100% England 31y Property management
St Paul's Way Residertial Management Limited 100% Engtand 28 Fpbruary  Property management
Stratford Central Management Limited 100% Englana 31 March  Property managemen:
Teifora (Stratford Maragement) Lirmted 100% Fngland 3! March  Property managamens
Teltord Homes Tiustees Limited 100% England 31 March Non-trading company
Bishopsyate Apartments LS 50% England 31 Maich Property development
A shopsgate Apartrnents No.2 LLP 50% Fngland 31 Maron Nori-iracaing company
SEN Managsareent Limited 50% Fnatand 31 August  Froperty management
City Matrth Finsoiry Park | irmted 50% fngland 31 Maich  Progerty development
Laly Nectk Finsbury Park Resicential Manageneint 50% England 37 March  Property imanagement
Company Lmitec

City Narth islingtor Lirmited S0% Engiand 31 March Non-rrading company
Mulatel LLP 80% Engtand 31 March  Froperty developiment
3akf-on Tower Developrmerts LLP 25% England 31 Coeember  Property developmaeant

All the above are regisiored at Tedord House, Quaersgae. Briawia Road, Waltnam Cross, Hertorashire, ZNS 7TF with the
axceplon of Zity North Islington Limited, which s registered at the Susiness Desian Certrg, 52 Upper Sireat, Ishingtor Green,

Londer, N1 OGH,



Independent auditors’ report to the members of Telford
Homes Plc

Report on the financial statements

o
In our opinion:

«  Telford Homes Pl¢’s group financial statements and company financial statements {the “financial statements™) give

a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of the group’s
profit and the group's and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (*IFRSs™) as adopted by the European Union;

the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
e - R et

The financial statements, included within the Annual Report, comprise:

+  the Group income statement and Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017,

e the Group and Company balance sheet as at 31 March 2017;

the Group and Company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
s  the Group and Company cash flow statement for the year then ended;
+ the accounting policies; and

s the notes to the financial statements, which include other explanatory information,

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is IFRSs as adopted

by the European Union, and applicable law and, as regards the company financial statements, as applied in accordance with
the provisicns of the Companies Act 2006.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in

respect of significant accounting estimates. [n making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future
events.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the group, the company and their environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we are required Lo report if we have identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and
the Directors’ Report. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report 1o you if, in our opinion:

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for vur audit; oe

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received frum branches not visited by us; or



» the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Uunder the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

b

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 63, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our respounsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial staternents in accordance with applicable law and

International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We de not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assurne responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior conseat in writing.

o

We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

e the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

« the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements,

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. if we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. With respect to the

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we consider whether those reports include the disclosures required by applicable
leg; uirements.

Maa

Owen Mackney (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
St Albans

O May 2017
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